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Preface

Since its establishment, the Japan Special Fund (JSF) and the Japanese Trust Fund for
Consultancy Services (JCF) have been important sources for supporting IDB’s technical
cooperation activities through financing a wide range of innovative solutions to the

countries of Latin America and the Caribbean region.

Over the last fifteen years, the total contribution from the government of Japan for JSF
and JCF reached US$233.5 million which is approximately 50% of the total trust fund
resources mobilized by the Bank during that period. In 2001, the Government of Japan
established a new special window within JSF, the Poverty Reduction Program (JPO), in
order to support efforts to alleviate poverty in the region.

The reason why there is strong demand for JSF is its flexibility in procurement and
eigibility of sectors and activities for financing. JSF is acompletely untied fund, which
finances conventional technical assistance projects, capacity building and pilot projects.
JCF is a semi-tied resource which establishes cooperation and knowledge sharing
between Japanese and local experts through financing technical assistance projects. In
2003, the Japanese Funds together financed 25 projects for US$12.1 million supporting
various technical cooperation activities of the Bank such as preparation and

implementation of loan projects, capacity building, and institutional strengthening.

Latin America and the Caribbean region are still facing many challenges in socia and
economic development. We look forward to continuous support from Japan through JSF
and JCF, while we ensure the efficient and effective use of the facility to strengthen the

long-term devel opment vision.

Goro Mutsuura
Coordinator for Japanese Trust Funds
Washington D.C., July 2004
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1. Overview of 2003

In 2003, the Bank approved 18 projects for a total of US$9.6 million financed by the Japan Special Fund
(JSF). These included 5 projects for the JSF Poverty Reduction Program (JPO) amounting to US$2.8
million. 38.1% of these operations supported the social sector; 31.7% focused on infrastructure projects;
and 17.4% involved environment sector, respectively. C & D countries received 44.5% of the support while
A & B countries received 33.5% of the total financing. Regional projects benefited from 21.9% of the
funds. Costa Rica was the beneficiary country that received the most from the JSF/JPO in 2003, receiving
19.8% of the total JISF/JPO approvals (US$1.9 million). It was followed by Columbiawith 17.1% (US$1.6
million) and Boliviawith 7.8% (US$0.8 million).
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Bank Approval (CY2003)

"A" countries
i 8% Environgn ent. Infrastructure
219% "B" countries 17.4% 31.7%
24.9%
"D" countries Modernization
of the State
206% "C" countries 12.8% Social

38.1%
23.9%

For Japanese Trust Fund for Consultancy Services (JCF), the Bank approved 7 projects totaling US$2.5
million in 2003. 89% of the total approval was attributed to D countries. Among all the approvals, 59% was
dedicated to the social sector, followed by 30% to infrastructure.
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The total approval to date for JSF amounts to US$185.2 million and US$23.2 million for JCF.

2. Resources

In 2003, the Government of Japan (GOJ) contributed JPY 192.2 million (approximately US$1.6 million) in
new money to JSF bringing the total contribution to JPY 25,300 million (approximately US$205.6 million).
The overall availability of JSF at the end of 2003 totaled JPY 2,192 million (approximately US$20.5



million). GOJ replenished JCF by JPY 211 million (approximately US$1.8 million) and had an available
balance of JPY 854 million (approximately US$8.0 million) by the end of year 2003. The total contribution
amounted to JPY 3,267.4 million (approximately US$27.9 million).

3. Highlightsof TC Projects Approved in 2003

31 Bolivia

Strategic Environmental Assessment of the Northern Corridor of Bolivia

Amount: US$750,000
Fund: JSF
Sector: Transportation

Executing Agency: National Road Services, SNC

The Northern Corridor is a major axis of development for Bolivia. Some stretches along the area are open
to traffic but most of the roads are not usable during the rainy seasons. A future road, financed by the
Bank’s loan BO-0200, will openthe area totraffic year round. Theareais characterized by extreme
topographical conditions, with a great diversity in climate and ecosystems and the presence of numerous
indigenous and ethnic minority communities. The strategic environmental assessment will identify fragile
population and ecosystems to evaluate potential environmental and social impacts in order to minimize
adverse potential impacts and maximize benefits of the opening of the Northern Corridor. Due to the
diversity and complexity of this highway, the assessment can’'t be limited to the local level. It requires an
analysis of the whole region, extensive knowledge of the area and interaction with people with deeply
rooted cultures. Thiswill be financed jointly with JSF and the Fund for Special Operations of the Bank.




Review and Modernization of the Drainage Master Plan for La Paz

Amount: US$750,000
Fund: JCF
Sector: Water and Sanitation

Beneficiary Agency:  Municipality of La Paz
The city of La Paz extendsitself along the banks of the Choqueyapu River, which serves as a collection of
rainwater and sewerage. On February 19, 2002, the insufficient capacity of the drains and channels to
handle a large volume of water resulted in major disasters for the city including a considerable loss of
human life. The Bank supports two programs addressing thisissue: Disaster Prevention Program (1121/SF
BO) and La Paz Urban Central Development Program (BO-0216). Both projects require a drainage master
plan to address the flooding risk and the development of the drainage system in downtown LaPaz. The TC
will support to establish the Master Plan which will revise and modernize the current drainage system,

focusing on the urban area of the city of La Paz.

3.2 Brazil

Support the Program of Culture and Citizenship for Social I nclusion

Amount; US$450,080
Fund: JSF
Sector: Social Investment

Executing Agency: Secretary of Culture of the State
of S&o Paulo (SEC)
The Factories of Culture (PCCSI) promotes equal access to
high quality cultural activities to at-risk children and
adolescents from the most vulnerable districts of S&o Paulo’s
periphery, in order to contribute to their integral development
and their integration in society. This TC supports the
development of a SEC’s socially oriented cultural policy that

will be the driving force of PCCSI. The studies will identify
the juxtapositions and gaps of the existing socia interventions
in the area; develop district diagnostics and plans that will
serve to prepare and monitor social interventions; and develop

the preliminary activities needed to set up the monitoring and

evaluation systems of the Culture and Citizenship for Social

Cultura Center in Brazil

Inclusion Program.



Support for a Social Rental Housing Program Pilot Project

Amount: US$465,000
Fund: JSF
Sector: Urban Development and Housing

Executing Agency: Secretary of Culture of the State of Sao Paulo (SEC)
In the past decade, a large exodus from Downtown S&o Paulo has left an enormous number of vacant and
underutilized buildings. The government has a program to rehabilitate the area (BR-0391) including a
Social Renting Housing subcomponent that will build and remodel 1,600 housing units. The technical
cooperation funding is essential to alow the Social Renting program to play arole in reversing the loss of
central S&o Paulo’ s housing function addressing the needs of low-income families. The TC will design and

appraise condominium management models, design a rental subsidy for low-income families and establish

amanagement unit with the participation of the community.
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3.3 Colombia

Analysis of the Housing Market and I nitial Development of Financial Mechanism for Low-I ncome

Households
Amount: US$390,574
Fund: JSF
Sector: Urban Development and Housing

Executing Agency:  National Planning Office
The housing deficit in Colombia is estimated at
approximately 2.6 million units. Current tousing
policy includes direct subsidies and credit to low-
income households to meet the demand for the
acquisition, construction or improvement of their
home. The purpose of this TC is to enhance the
effectiveness of the “Government Housing
Program” (C0O0241) for low income urban
households by clearly defining the demand and
supply; devel oping new housing finance instruments
for lower income households;, and creating
mechanisms for continuous monitoring and

evaluation of government housing programs.

I ntegrity Indexesfor Public I nstitutions

Colombian House

Amount: US$600,000

Fund: JSF

Sector: Urban Development and Housing

Executing Agency: National Planning Office (Direccion Nacional de Plantacion)

The objective isto increase the country's knowledge of corruption and integrity issuesin national, regional

and local public institutions, by means of quantitative and qualitative measurement tools. The TC finances

the validation of the national Integrity Index which will expand to a department and municipal level. These

indexes are key benchmarks to determine the level of success and effectiveness of the loan “Program for

the Renovation of the National Public Administration” (CO-0266) in which the improvement of public

policy making and public service delivery is achieved in terms of their the efficiency, efficacy and

accountability.



34 CostaRica

Sustainable Development of the Huetar Atlantic Region

Amount; US$600,000
Fund: JSF
Sector: Environmental Protection

Executing Agency:  Ministry of Planning

The Huetar-Atlantic region has one of the highest poverty and unemployment rates in Costa Rica, and is
recurrently being affected by floods that disrupt its productive capacity. Despite its current situation, the
region is considered to have development potential due to its abundant natural resources including
protected areas and forests as well as an area suitable for agriculture, with aroad network for transportation
to marketsin the rest of the country and abroad through the Limén port.

This TC supports the design and preparation of a Sustainable Program for the Huetar Atlantica Region
(CR-0157) to encourage sustai nable economic growth through promoting competitiveness in key economic
activities of the region, such as reducing the exposure to risk of the region’s population and infrastructure,
and fostering a sustainable use of the natural resources. The TC will analyze the region’s institutiona
capacity, comparative advantages, environmental risk factors and the economic structure. Based on this
analysis, the TC will prepare an action plan for sustainable development that will be implemented by the

loan. The Government of Costa Rica has given the highest priority to the Program and the loan.

Costarican Landscape

National Strategy for Environmental Management

Amount: US$470,000

Fund: JSF

Sector: Environmental Protection

Executing Agency: Ministry of Environment and Energy (MINAE)

The TC supports the formulation of a “Participatory National Environmental Management Strategy” that
helps reduce, mitigate, and solve environmental problems while promoting sustainable development in the

country through a participatory process which involves the various public and private stakeholders. The



Strategy will contain: defining regulatory principles and criteria for environmental policy; defining
management priorities and realistic use and conservation goals in keeping up the country’s needs;
strengthening institutional capacities; and identifying and promoting plans, programs, projects, actions, and
instruments aimed at addressing agreed-upon priorities. The Strategy will serve as a guide for designing
the new structure of MINAE and supporting the preparation of an Environmental Management Program,

which could be financed by the Bank.

Modernization of Expenditure and Taxation and Inv. Fund for Growth and Competitiveness

Amount; US$325,000

Fund: JSF

Sector: Reform and Modernization of the State
Executing Agency: Ministry of Finance

The Bank prepared a hybrid operation “Modernization of Expenditure and Taxation, and Investment Fund
for Growth and Competitiveness Program” (CR-0140). One part of loan will be Policy Based, which will
be disbursed in two installments to support deficit reduction measures. The other part is an investment fund
to support activities in the fiscal area, customs administration, rural roads, small and medium enterprises
and information technology among other activities. Resources of the loan will became available if the
government meets the conditions for several expenditures and llection. This TC will analyze the tax and
expenditure policy and procedures, define targets and benchmarks for measuring progress. In addition, the

TC designs a program budget mechanism that can be used as a planning, management and eval uative tool.

Slum Upgrading Program

Amount; US$500,000
Fund: JSF
Sector: Social Investment

Executing Agency: Ministry of Housing
Over the past decade, Costa Rica's mgjor cities have seen the accelerated spread of "poverty belts" where
some 20,000 families live concentrated in 175 substandard settlements. To address this problem, the
Government of Costa Rica requested a loan for US$30 million to improve the living conditions of low-
income groups in the Metropolitan Area of San José and the cities of Esparza, Limdn and Punta Arenas.
The program would finance a comprehensive set of interventions combining investments in infrastructure
and basic services with social actions targeted to the most vulnerable groups. This TC designs the tools to
ensure that the benefit of the Program are targeted to low-income families in urban areas and the cost of the

interventions benefits the maximum possible number of eligible families.



35 Dominican Republic

Strengthening the Territorial Public I nvestment System

Amount; US$ 454,986
Fund: JSF
Sector: Social Investment

Executing Agency: National Planning Office (ONAPLAN)

Decision making in the Dominican Republic is highly centralized and lacks input from local actors. This
results in a chronic situation sincethe central government i the sole service provider in most sectors.
Provincial level entities and municipal governments have neither the normative responsibilities northe
access to technical and financial resources required to plan and manage investment programs. The
Dominican Government recognizes the limitations of this system and is undergoing a modernization
process to become more efficient, accountable, and open to citizen participation. The National Public
Investment SystemNPIS (DR0153) will allow greater participation of local and regional levels in the
management of social investment projects that target vulnerable populations. The TC will develop the
technical norms, procedures, and mechanisms that will create the institutional framework to support the
NPIS.

3.6 El Salvador

Support the Water Resources Management in El Salvador

Amount: US$600,000
Fund: JCF
Sector: Environmental Protection

Executing Agency: National Water and Sewerage Administration, ANDA
Historically, the availability of water resources in El Salvador has been considered ample. This situation
has changed due to the population increase, pollution and general and natural resource degradation in its
major river basins and watersheds. Water allocation is becoming a major source of conflict anong sectors
and regions in the country. This situation prompted the government to foster the modernization of the
water supply and sanitation sub sector, by supporting investments and processes that promote decentralized
management of systems (1102/OC-ES). The Government of ElI Salvador recognizes that the
decentralization of potable water and sanitation systems must be accompanied with integrated water
resources management, particularly in the context of micro-watersheds where municipalities are located.
This technical aoperation will foster the process of decentralization of water systems with appropriate

information and management instruments to enhance water resources management activities at watershed



level, as well as to support the country in developing a national framework for integrated water resources

management.

37 Honduras

Instruments & Methodologies for Targeting Children, Adolescents or Women who depend on the Streets

for Survival
Amount: US$625,000
Fund: JPO
Sector: Women, Children and Y outh

Executing Agency: Family Assignment Program (PRAF)
Thousands of Honduran women, boys and girls depend their living on the streets or on garbage dumps. The
data available for the situation is scarce and ho comprehensive approach has been taken to address the
problem. This TC seeks to fill out these data and policy gaps through a two-fold approach. First, it will
provide comprehensive socio-economic data on the target population. Second, it will develop and test new
sustai nable methodol ogies to address the problem. The project will finance the assessment of the situation
among women and children depending on the streets in San Pedro Sula and Tegucigalpa in order to
understand the current situation and will design an action plan. It will further include an analysis of the
situation of the garbage dump of Tegucigalpa to design an integral and more sustainable approach to the
social and environmental issues and the risks involved. Finally, the project will finance a pilot case for

children working as garbage recyclersto go to school.

Children from Honduras
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38 Jamaica

National Energy Diversification Strategy

Amount: US$750,000
Fund: JCF
Sector: Energy

Executing Agency: Ministry of Mining and Energy

Currently more than 90% of Jamaica's commercial energy needs are met from imported petroleum. The
country’s long-term development sustainability rests on its ability to achieve security and diversity in the
sources of energy supply at stable prices.

The Government developed an energy sector policy intended to obtain energy supplies at the most
economical cost through a combination of public and private sector participation, deregulation and
liberalization of the energy sector and diversification of the primary energy mix. Preliminary evaluations
indicate that natural gas in the form of liquefied natural gas (LNG) would be an ideal diversification fuel
that could serve Jamaica's diversification objectives at arelatively cheaper price. A pre-feasibility study
already identified 3 potential sites for project development. The purpose of this TC is to prepare the
feasibility study for the introduction of LNG in Jamaica by the private sector. It includes a realistic
evaluation of demand; a technological assessment; LNG terminal site selection; a model or
ownership and operation; regulatory framework; LNG supply sources and options; transportation; socio-
environmental assessment; costing and schedule of preliminary design; investment model; and advisory

servicesto assist in structuring the project and in the negotiating strategy.

39 M exico

Analysis of the Social Strategy

Amount: US$377,000
Fund: JSF
Sector: Social Investment

Executing Agency: Secretariat of Social Development (SEDESOL)

The Mexican Government, in cooperation with the Bank, will invest US$350 million to reduce urban
poverty and to evaluate social programs (ME-0255). The project will cost approximately US$25 million
and will focus on a multiyear evaluation of the sustainable impact of SEDESOL's social programs. These
evaluations will allow important improvements in social program design within a framework of a coherent
social policy strategy and will offer important information to redirect resources towards interventions with
the highest returns.

This TC will support al the preparation activities and provide the building blocks (validated evaluation

methodology and design, data collection instruments) needed to develop the evaluations. The knowledge
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sharing which will be achieved through this TC is very valuable for the Bank’s activities in other countries
of the Region, given its focus on improving the measurement of the effectiveness of poverty reduction
efforts.

3.10 Nicaragua

Support for the Preparation of the Citizens Security Program

Amount: US$300,000

Fund: JSF

Sector: Social and Modernization of the State

Executing Agency: Minister of the Interior (Ministério de Gobernacién)

Thecitizens' security and violence had become a priority issue for the Government given its high economic
and social cost. One of the characteristics of the current violence situation in Nicaragua is the presence of
gang groups called pandillas.

Despite the creation of the Secretariat of the Y outh and new legislation for the integral development of the
Youth and Children, the institutions involved with security and protection of children and youth do not
have the structure, capacity nor the resources necessary to cope with the problem. In addition, the legal
system is also inadequate to take preventive and control measures related to citizens' security.

To improve this situation, the Government with the support of the Bank is preparing a program to improve
the conditions related to citizens' security and reduce criminality among youth (N1-0168). The program
focuses on institutional strengthening of the entities involved in the attention to delinquent youth and the
implementation of preventive programs. The objective of this TC is to design the interventions to be

included in the loan.

3.11 Panama

Final Design of Panama City Treatment Plan

Amount: US$1,500,000
Fund: JCF
Sector: Water and Sanitation

Executing Agency: Ministry Health
The metropolitan area of Panama City discharges a large amount of untreated liquid wastes into urban
rivers or directly into the Panama Bay. The city residents’ concern about the condition of the Panama bay
has been increased because of the visible deterioration of its waters and the potential risksto public health.
Acknowledging the problem, the Government established a new institutional and regulatory framework for
the sector and, with help of the international community, developed a Master Plan. Based on this strategy,
the estimated investment to expand the sewerage system and provide proper treatment and disposal is
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US$326 million. The government plans to implement the project in two stages over a period of at least 9
years with resources financed through the Bank and the Japan Bank for International Cooperation (JBIC).
In order to properly define the scope and components of the project, the following pre-investment studies
are required: (i) final engineering designs for the expansion of the sewerage network, and (ii) afinal design
of aninterception, treatment and wastewater disposal system.

The first set of studies will be financed by the Bank’s loan (US$3 million) and the other studies will be
financed with resources of JCF. Both engineering design carried out in parallel and jointly will define the

scope of thefirst construction phase.

Panama City

3.12 Regional

Caribbean Education Sector HIV/AI DS Response Capacity Building Program

Amount: US$ 565,000
Fund: JSF
Sector: Health and Education

Executing Agency: Caribbean Community CARICOM

The HIV/AIDS per capita prevalence rate for the Caribbean region is the second highest globally, and
AIDS is dready the leading cause of death for the 15-44 age group in the Caribbean region. Although
there is a general consensus that the epidemic is a national development challenge and not exclusively a
public health issue, aimost all technical assistance and funds from the different international and local
partners continue to be channeled through the Ministry of Health.

The education sector has akey roleto play in preventing HIV and mitigating the effects on individuals and
communities. Some countries have education sector components of national HIV/AIDS strategic plans but
most of these are weak and none are in a state of readiness for implementation. The purpose of this TC is
to improve the response of the education sector to the HIV/AIDS epidemic, as a partner in the multi-

sectoral strategy of the prevention and mitigation of AIDS in each Caribbean country. It will provide
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practical and concrete models for the education sector to use in reducing HIV transmission rates among
young people. These benefits will be generated first in Jamaica, Belize and Guyana. The lessons learned
will then be disseminated throughout the Caribbean region and the operation will assist other countries in

the region to develop their own education sector responses to the HIV/AIDS epidemic.

Mundo Maya Sustainable Tourism Program

Amount: US$750,000
Fund: JSF
Sector: Tourism

Executing Agency: Mundo Maya Organization (OMM)

The Mundo Maya is a route that covers parts of Belize, El Salvador, Guatemala, Honduras and Mexico. It
has enormous tourism potential due to its monumental archaeology sites, attractive natural surroundings
and variety of etno-groups. The Region’s tourist attractions contrast with its poverty and a lack of basic

services and job opportunities.

The Mundo Maya Sustainable Tourism Program (MMSTP) has been designed to offer opportunities for

economic and social development for the region through the participation of local communities in

sustainable tourism projects. With help from the international community and active participation of the
local community, pre-feasibility studies were completed and preliminary financial requirements were

estimated at US$150 million. The outcome implies the restoration of archeological sites, accessto the sites
and basic infrastructure. This TC will support the preparation of funding applications which each country
will submit to the Bank, other financial institutions and donorsin order to implement the proposed MM STP.

Mundo Maya Archeological Site
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4,

4,

Highlights of Projectsin Execution

1.  Chile

Strengthening Civil Society Organizations Networksthrough | nformation Technology

Amount: US$520,000
Fund: JPO
Sector: Social Development

Executing Agency: National Foundation for the Alleviation of Poverty

The operation finances the organization and management of 17 Information and Networking Centers
(Centros de Informacion y Vinculo, CIVs). The Centers are used as the places for social gatherings
directed by well-trained personnel, where community members have the opportunity to access
educational, recreational and socia activities. The Centers will also contribute to strengthen the work
done by 25 civil society organizations networks and their institutional capacity. Members of the
communities and civil society networks are able to learn innovative technologies, share experiences and
lessonslearned. They will also learn more about their rights and other information that can help alleviate
poverty including the resources and social benefits available to low income groups. It will be quality and
timely information in an easy to understand format. Another benefit to the community is the capability of
obtaining official documents or processing paperwork via online instead of having to travel long distances
to where government offices are located. The use of communication technologies aso contributes to set
the basis for citizen participation in the public policy. These activities contribute to reduce socia
inequalities increased by the digital gap and enable low-income communities to participate in the
challenges and benefits that derive from having access to knowledge and information. The operation
creates the conditions to help low-income communities groups share the benefits of growth. This
methodology serves as a model to elaborate a national strategy to replicate this model in other low
income areas of the country.

by Nybia La Guardia, Team Leader
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4.2. Guatemala

Support to the Program for the Improvement of the Surveys and the Measurement of Living

Conditions
Amount: US$640,000
Fund: JCF
Sector: Social Investment

Executing Agency: National Statistics Institute (INE)

The technical cooperation was aimed at improving the capacity of INE in the areas of data management
and information technology, and was complimented with a studies fund to finance a research on living
conditions. The first part of the project was successfully executed between April 2002 and July 2003
generating the following benefits to INE: (i) A common database based on MS SQL 2000 to manage
data from administrative records and household surveys; (ii) Migration of historic information to
modern database system; (ii) Improvement in the data entering technology promoting the use of
Internet to shorten the process; (iii) Development of an internal network at INE to facilitate knowledge
exchange within the institution; and (iv) Improvement of INE’s Internet site.
The operation has successfully modernized the internal data management capacity of INE, providing it
with better tools to improve the quality and opportunity of the data generated.

by Juan Antonio Mejia-Guerra, Team Leader

4.3. Nicaragua

Emergency attention to boys/girls and adolescents affected by hurricane Mitch in thecityo ¥ Managua

Amount: US$550,000

Fund: JSF

Sector: Social Development

Executing Agency: Casa Alianza (International NGO)
Hurricane Mitch intensified the seriousness of the situation of children who live and/or work on the streets.
The objective of this TC was to facilitate the immediate attention to children and adolescents in the city of
Managua affected by the hurricane, offering appropriate health, education, lodging and training services.
The executor, Casa Alianza, has broad experience in caring for this problem and its efficiency and integrity
have been recognized internationally. The TC has been successfully executed with the following major
outputs:
1) Health Services: During 3 years, the project provided medical attention to 1,548 children/babies, with an
overall total of 19,616 receiving medical attention. The main focus was HIV-AIDS, severe malnutrition,

parasites, injuries, sexually transmitted diseases and mental health care.
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2) Program “Luna”: Street Children are more vulnerable for being exposed to sexually transmitted diseases.
This program devel oped several actionsto: (i) prevent and educate about sexually transmitted diseases; (ii)
test; and (iii) treat infected children. The program provided 8,103 attentions to 525 kids.

3) Family Reintegration: The program supported the integration of 234 kids with their

families through: (i) a minimum of two visits to the family before the child is taken

back home; (ii) monitoring through visits at least every three months to the child and

his/her family; and (iii) support children through a kind of scholarship that covers

education, health, clothing, recreation, food and other expenses.

4) Emergency home for girls. This home accommodated girls between 13 and 18 years old

with no family ties and who are very vulnerable and often have a history of drug usage.
This program provided 156 girls with shelter and started the rehabilitation process.

It is estimated that 80% of the girls were able to overcome their crisis. Another home

for young mothers was established to provide appropriate prenatal care, emotional and

physical stability and support for social integration. During the period of 3 years

while the TC supported the center, 93 young mothers and 52 babies were supported.

Emergency home for girlsin Managua, Nicaragua
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4.4. Suriname

Basic Education Project Preparation

Amount: US$150,000
Fund: JSF
Sector: Education

Executing Agency: Ministry of Education

This TC achieved its objective to support the preparation of the Basic Education Improvement Project in
Suriname (SU-0023). The objective was to support the design, feasibility and analysis of the Program, as
well as workshops and seminars. The consultancies contracted included the University of Twente and SLO,
as well as international and local individual consultants and covered issues such as the upgrading of the
basic education curriculum, textbooks and teaching materials, teacher education, renovation and
rehabilitation of school infrastructure, and the strengthening of school management.

The reports presented by the different consultancies contributed greatly to the design of the Basic Education
Improvement Project, approved by the Bank in December 2003. This US$14 million loan is the second
approval by the Bank in the education sector and will support the modernization and strengthening of
Suriname's basi ¢ education system.

The TC resources will assist the Ministry of Education and Community Development (MOECD) in
reorganizing the present primary and junior secondary education system into a single 10-year basic
education cycle. To accomplish this task, the ministry adopted a new curriculum, redesigned textbooks,
undertook new techniques of teacher training, reformed the existing exa mination system and acquireed new
teaching materials. As a part of the program, those primary and junior secondary schools now in poor
condition were rehabilitated, aswell as certain MOECD units and training facilities that needed renovations.
Additionally, the program included activities to enhance the management capacity and autonomy of schools
and to strengthen and equip the MOECD with the instruments and tools to conduct more effective ways to

fulfill the responsibilities.

e

Suriname Teacher and Student of aPublic Schol

By Jesus Duarte, Team Leader
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5. Other Activitiesin 2003

Special Mission Trip to Japan —
Business Seminar in Tokyo and Dialogue with Various Japanese Firms and Organizations

The JSF team took part in the Business Information Seminar in Tokyo, which was hosted by the Bank’s
Officein Japan. The seminar aimed at the dissemination of IDB strategy and policiesin order for Japanese
firms to be able to participate more actively in tenders and projects financed by the Bank. As a main
speaker, the JSF team presented the information of JSF/JCF activities as well as the Bank’s strategies to
various participants such as consulting firms, research institutes, accounting firms, and trading companies.
In addition to the trend by sector and country, the JSF team explained “How to access the IDB project”,
introducing the function of local representative office and current TC projectsin pipeline, which resulted in
encouraging the participants to be actively involved in the JSF/JCF program. There was a clear recognition
among the Japanese firms that Japanese Funds, especially, the JCF program is attractive due to the larger
size of recent projects and its flexible implementation. Finally, in order to strengthen the business linkage,
videoconferences with wide range of business information are expected to be launched during the year of
2004. In addition to the participation of Business Seminar, the JSF team explored the opportunities of
linkage with Japanese NGO groups to participate in the poverty reduction activities in Latin America

region through JPO program.

Coordination Meeting with Japan I nternational Cooperation Agency (JICA) in Honduras

The JSF team participated in the coordination meeting between JICA and the Bank which has been held bi-
annually in Honduras. The goa of the meeting was to develop a mutual understanding of the latest JICA
and IDB operations and strategy in Honduras, and exchange project pipeline information. The JSF team
joined the session to introduce the general outline of Japanese Fund including operation performance,
eligibility and procedure. The presentation was focused to disseminate information about the JPO facility in
other to seek the future financial collaboration with JICA.

Meeting with Embassy of Japan in Nicaragua and Honduras

The JSF team had a meeting with the Embassy of Japan to seek an opportunity of collaboration with its
Grass Roots Cooperation Fund and Japanese Trust Fund, especially with JPO facility. Needs of technical
cooperation in both countries were stressed, and it was concluded that the future collaboration would be
sought more actively, utilizing the sufficient capacity to provide technical know-how for social

development.
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From |DB’sPress Releases and IDB AMERICA'’s Articles
During 2003, the following JSF/JCF projects were mentioned in the IDB’s Press Releases and IDB
AMERICA’s articles (see Appendix I1):

IDB’s News Release
1. Regiona “Mundo Maya Sustainable Tourism Program” JSF US$750,000
http://www.iadb.org/NEWS/DISPLAY /PRPrint.cfm?PR_Num=05/03& L anguage=English

2. Belize “Poverty Elimination Strategy |mplementation” JPO US$300,000
http://www.iadb.org/NEWS/Display/PRPrint.cfm?PR_Num=154 03& L anguage=English

3. Brazil “Support the Program of Culture and Citizenship for Social Inclusion” JSF US$450,080
http://www.iadb.org/NEWS/Display/PRPrint.cfm?PR_Num=203 03& L anquage=English

4. Bolivia“Strategic Environmental Assessment of the Northern Corridor of Bolivia’ JSF US$750,000
http://www.iadb.ora/NEWS/Display/PRPrint.cfm?PR_Num=239_03& L anguage=English

IDB AMERICA’s articles
5. Ecuador “ Social Indicators Integrated System (SIISE)” JSF US$1,000,000
http://www.iadb.org/idbamerical/index.cfm?thisid=1521

6. Reporting Currency

For upgrading efficiency of the administration of Japanese Trust Funds, the donor agreed in December
2003 that the Bank would begin reporting the financial statements denominated in US Dollars as of January
2004, instead of reporting in Japanese Y en since the Fund’ s establishment. The transition of the reporting
currency was completed successfully in January 2004 and the FY 2004 financial statements will be reported
in US Dollars.
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7. Monitoring and Supervision

The JSF team conducted a monitoring mission to Chile and Uruguay in June 2003, to review and monitor
the status of the on-going and completed TC projects from various aspects such as the operational,
environmental, and social points of view.

7.1. Chile

Santiago-Valparaiso-Vifia del Mar Toll Road Project

Amount: $554,590
Fund: JSF
Sector: Transportation

Executing Agency: Private Sector Department (PRI) of IDB

Bank’s Approval: December, 2002
The technical cooperation was designed to support studies that are indispensable for the completion of a
thorough analysis of the project by the Bank. The emphasis was placed specifically on the environmental
and socia analysis which includes an extensive due diligence review of the project as well as public
consultation plans. It is essential for this TC to meet the Bank's environmental and social guidelines which

are necessarily stringent as a Multilateral Development Bank.

The execution of the TC was successful in that the construction, contract and budget were in line with the
original schedule. In addition, the TC had a positive impact to lower the cost of the bond issuance since the
legal component was very complex. The TC supported the beneficiary to take an active role by sharing the
risk of the project with various private investors such as pension funds. The regulatory framework for
concessions was originally done by another IDB window, the Multilateral Investment Fund (MIF), which
offers the major source of technical assistance grants for micro and small business development in the
region. The guarantee scheme was successfully executed by Private Sector Department at the Bank (PRI)
with a support of this TC. The success was resulted from the combined-working efforts of MIF, JSF and
PRI, which demonstrated a significant effectiveness of inter-departmental technical cooperation to the
region. This project has received 2 awards (the best project in Latin America and the best highway project

in Latin America) in Chile, creating a demonstration-effect to follow as the best practice.
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Plan for the Development of the Artisan Fishery Sector of the Vth Region of Chile
Amount: US$200,000

Fund: JCF

Sector: Fishery
Executing Agency: IDB

Bank’s Approval: October, 2001

The objective of thistechnical cooperation wasto conduct an economic and social evaluation of alternative
sustainable development scenarios of the artisan fishery sector in the Vth Region of Chile, and to prepare a
development and investment plan to implement the best alternative. This plan defined the framework for
the actions of the different economic and social participants, both public and private, under a common
objective for the development of this sector. The TC contained the following major activities: i) to prepare
a diagnostic study describing and characterizing biological, technological, economical, environmental and
social aspects of the sector; ii) to organize discussion seminars and technical workshops to validate the
diagnosis; iii) to prepare atechnical report presenting the alternative scenarios and characterizing the best
one with analysis of its net benefits and probable distribution effects; and iv) to elaborate a sustainable
development and investment plan to implement the best scenario for the artisan fishery sector in the Vth
Region of Chile.

This TC achieved one of the main aobjectives to: a) upgrade the education of the fishing efforts and fishing
stock methodology; b) alleviate the lack of proper

infrastructure and equipments for post harvesting; and c)
change the independent selling attitude of fishermen. More
importantly, this innovative consultation was effectively
conducted because the methodol ogy was well explained and
agreed between FEDEPESCA, special consultant and
fishermen. The president of FEDEPESCA of Region V
was satisfied with the result of TC and its success as a pilot
project. Special attention was given regarding professional
consulting service by Japanese consultants. It was
confirmed that several workshops conducted by Japanese
specialists were extremely productive to present a clear
picture of methodology to fishermen. The program done by
the TC will expand to the other regions, indicating that

there is a possibility of a IDB loan after the effectiveness

and sustainability of the TC is confirmed.
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Development of Organizations of Older Adults

Amount: US$750,000

Fund: JPO

Sector: Social Development

Executing Agency: Help Age International

Bank’s Approval: January, 2002
The project financed consulting services, training and public information activities directly benefiting low-
income older adults. The objective of this operation was to contribute to poverty reduction, increased social
equity and improvement of the quality of life of older persons by strengthening the participation of low-
income older adults in community organizations, local, national and international networks. The main
activities included the strengthening the older adults networks working with NGOs and facilitating the
effective interaction and coordination mechanisms between government institutions and civil society
organizations for social protection of the poorest elderly citizens.
The TC contributed to boosting the expansion of the communication in various levels of elderly people
through the participation of the state and local communities. The connection of the regional network has
been strengthened via computer technology such as e-mail and awebsite. A leader of Red Tiempo, stressed
that the TC had a strong impact on various stakeholders since the networking activity has been appreciated
in many countries, and the member of participants is growing not only in Latin America but also in the
Asian region. The visibility of the project is very high through well designed in-house website, attracting

various civil groupsin different countries who have been facing aging issues.
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Support for the Preparation of a Vulnerable Neighborhood I ntervention Program

Amount: US$ 745,000
Fund: JSF/JPO
Sector: Social Investment

Executing Agency: Ministry of Interior

Bank’s Approval: October, 2002
The objectives of the TC operation were (i) to support the design and implementation of a loan for the
strengthening of a vulnerable neighborhood intervention model in Chile (CH-0178), and (ii) to implement a
pilot intervention in three neighborhoods of Santiago. The operation was divided into the following
components and activities: a) analysis of experiences and definition of target neighborhoods focusing on
typology for identifying and selecting neighborhoods for the vulnerable neighborhood program universe,
and identifying public and private information available on the social prevention and infrastructure
dimensions of citizen security at the central, regional, and local level; b) design of intervention model; c)
strengthening of the subsecretariat of the Interior; and d) pilot intervention including neighborhood
organization training activities and investmentsin social prevention and infrastructure projects.
The execution of the TC was successfully conducted with various international experts, academic
specidists, and NGO staff. The TC contributed to unite the local and general policy in order to establish a
model and standard conducted by consultants, police officers and vulnerable residents. This new approach
has an impact to Agenda Chile Security (New Governnent program) which focused on: @) synthesizing the
capacity and capability of security program; and b) adapting a new security policy. The TC was supported
by lots of stakeholders with strong visibility. On June 16 2003, the President of Chile held a meeting with
Minister of Interior and Minister of Justice to stress the importance of the new security policy and

specifically mentioned his appreciation for the Japanese Fund.
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7.2.Uruguay

Pilot Project for the Education Connectivity Program and Preparation of an Expansion Strategy

Amount; $748,200

Fund: JCF

Sector: Education

Executing Agency: Educational Connectivity Committee integrated by the Secretary of the

Presidency, the National Public Education Administration (ANEP) and the
National Telecommunication Administration (ANTEL)

Bank’s Approval: December, 2001
The objective of the project was to develop a definition and strategy of the Educational Connectivity
Program that provides access and training to students and teachers of the public education system,
including primary, secondary and technical education. The specific scope of the project included: i)
Preparation of the design and implementation of a program of pilot projects to introduce new information
technologies to support initiatives that contribute towards enhancing the teaching and leaning process. In
addition, the program facilitated access to the new information technologies by students and professors of
al educational levels (primary, secondary and technical); and ii) Development of afeasibility study for the
implementation of afuture expansion strategy for the Connectivity Program.
This TC had a strong impact to enhance the teaching resources in terms of educational methodology with
many teachers creating their own software to be used during their lectures. Teachers started creating their
own educational software to be used at their classes, which was a very efficient means for building teaching
skills. The reaction of computer-based education among students was quite positive, encouraging them to

participate in more innovative studies through the usage of computers.

Support for the Modernization Program of Secondary Education and Teaching Formulation
Amount: $597,000

Fund: JSF
Sector: Education
Executing Agency: IDB with a coordination through Executing Unit of Educational Connectivity

Committee Secondary Education and Teacher Training
Bank’s Approval: July, 2001
The project was part of the development of a high-priority policy established by the Government of
Uruguay in the sector of information and communications technology of educational sector. Main activities
included: i) Preparation of the design and implementation of a program of pilot projects to introduce new
information technologies to support initiatives that contribute towards enhancing the teaching and learning

processes, and ii) Carrying out the necessary studies for the design and preparation of the new loan
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operation aimed at deepening the Reform process to include Upper Secondary Education as well as Teacher
Training Institutions.

The project was designed to provide free access of Internet to about 100 school centers (primary and
secondary schools, technical schools and training centers for professors) of the educational system
throughout the country. The TC contributed significantly to the enhancement of capacity building of the
National Public Education Administration (ANEP), which did not have an effective internal control system

to review the efficiency of investment at school.

Secondary School in Tacuarembo, Uruguay

Comprehensive Project for at Risk | nfants and Adolescents of the Uruguayan Family

Amount; US$500,000
Fund: JSF
Sector: Social investment-Family, Women and youth

Executing Agency: Secretariat of the Presidency of the Republic of Uruguay

Bank’s Approval: December, 2001
This TC had as its main objective to support the design and start the implementation of the
“Comprehensive Program for at Risk Infants and Adolescents of the Uruguayan Family” (UR-0134). Its
purposewas to work towards the improvement of the social conditions and social participation of the high-
risk children and adolescents, with the expressed inclusion of their families. The execution of this TC
included the organization of three key workshops: i) addressing implementation problems and the design of
the strategic plans, ensuring an integral policy which considered the International Convention on Children
Rights; ii) advancing the Program design on the basis of the experiences and recommendations from studies
and analysis up to that point in time, and iii) relevant actions for the initiation of the Program, ascertaining

that these actions will contribute to the successful execution of the Program.
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The project provided a significant improvement to serve low-income families to encourage the participation
of social services by giving a systematic methodology of identification at the hospital. Due to the
complexity of social issues, the execution sometimes faced difficulties to maintain the high quality service
to infants. However, the strong support from various consultants and NGOs was provided to maximize the

benefit. The activities are sustainable to expand the activities from the local to regional scale.

Center for Day Care, Uruguay
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Inter-American Duvulu[nncnt Bank

PRESS RELEASE

Bance Interamericano de Desarrollo  comunic

IDB Home > News > Press Releases

IDB TO HOST LAUNCHING OF THE MUNDO MAYA SUSTAINABLE
TOURISM DEVELOPMENT PROGRAM AND STRATEGIC ALLIANCE
JAN. 16

Plan will include regional integration, ar chaeological restoration, national parks,
tourism and social infrastructure, and microenterprise

The Inter-American Development Bank will host the launching of the Mundo Maya
Sustainable Tourism Programand the creation of the Mundo Maya Alliance a a meeting
on January 16, 2003.

Meeting participants will include Mundo Maya Organization President Luis Felipe Miranda
Trejo; IDB President Enrique V. Iglesias; and ministers of tourism of Central America. The
opening session will begin at 9 am. at the Andres Bello Auditorium, 9th. Floor, at IDB
headquarters, 1300 New Y ork Ave., Room B300 A/B, Washington, D.C.

The Mundo Maya Program is designed to preserve and showcase the Mayan heritage in the
five countries where some five million descendents of this ancient people live today. In this
region, which includes 500,000 square kilometers in Belize, Guatemala, El Salvador,
Honduras, and southern Mexico. Mayan languages are still spoken and Mayan artistic and
socia traditions are preserved.

The 1 DB financed the preparation of the Mundo Maya Program, which will be carried out
by the Mundo Maya Or ganization*, The program consists of aregional cultural,
ecological, and adventure tourism route developed with the participation of local
communities. Special efforts will be made to preserve the region’s natural and cultural
heritage to ensure regional sustainable development.

The IDB event will include the presentation of an investment plan that will include
projectsin the areas of planning and regional integrati on, archaeological restoration,
development of national parks and protected areas management plans, tourism and social
infrastructure, tourist microenterprises, training and streamlining border crossings.

IDB resources for the preparation of the program were provided by technical cooperations
financed from the Fund for Special Operations, the Japanese Fund, the Swedish Fund, the
Norwegian Fund, the Danish Fund, the Korean Fund, and the United Kingdom Fund. The
Japanese Fund will provide new financing to implement the investment plan.

The Mundo Maya Alliance will be created with the signing of a memorandum of
understanding by the ministers of tourism of the five countriesinvolved, the presidents of
Conservation International and Counterpart International, and the vice-president of the
National Geographic Society. The objective of this memorandum is to manifest interest in
the Mundo Maya Sustainable Tourism Program, and other similar programs in the Maya
Region, to expedite technical and financia cooperation.

Also on January 16 a cocktail reception will take place from 6-8 p.m. at the National
Geographic Society, Explorers Hall, 17th and M Streets, N.W., Washington, D.C. (free
parking at NGS garage entrance on M Street between 16 and 17 Streets).

2ADC DE PREMS:

Espafiol | Erancais | Portugués

January 15, 2003

INFORMATION

*The Mundo Maya
Organization is a regional
entity formed in 1992 by the
ministries of tourism and the
private sector of Belize, El
Salvador, Guatemala,
Honduras and Mexico. Its
mission is to promote the
sustainable tourism
development of the Maya
region, and help preserve
its cultural heritage and
environment for future
generations.

For more information on the
Mundo Maya Program
please contact Tatiana
Ramos of the Organizacion
Mundo Maya at e-mail

) )
or by phone to (202) 261-
3525.

For information on the IDB
activities to support this
initiative please contact
Juana Salazar at
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Inter-American Duvulu[nncnt Bank FRESS RELEASE
7 . .
K\‘ﬁ. % DBanco Interamericano de Desarrollo  comunicADO DE PRENSA
IDB Home > News > Press Releases Espafiol | Erancais | Portugués

August 12, 2003
IDB PROVIDES SUPPORT TO BELIZE'SPOVERTY REDUCTION PRESS
STRATEGY AND ACTION PLAN CONTACTS

Japanese Special Fund resourcesto assist Belizean effortsto meet Millennium Peter Bate

Development Goals peterb@iadb.org
(202) 623-2609

The Inter-American Development Bank today announced the approval of a$300,000  Christina MacCulloch
grant from the Japanese Special Fund to support a program of the Belizean government
to update its strategy and action plan to combat poverty. (202)623-1718
These resources will help finance technical and institutional assistance to support Belize

in its efforts to formulate the 2003-2008 National Poverty Elimination Strategy and

Action Plan (NPESAP). This umbrellainstrument will guide government policies and

actions to boost economic growth, increase competitiveness and reduce poverty. The

program will be executed by the Ministry of Economic Development.

“This program incorporates a result-oriented approach for the NPESAP, developing
specific targets based on the U.N. Millennium Development Goals, particularly
reducing extreme poverty by half by the year 2015,” said the IDB’ s Representative in
Belize, Hugo Souza.

IDB project team leader Marisil Naborre said: “The program will establish rigorous
linkages between NPESAP goals and the programs and actions to be implemented
within the strategy’ s framework.” This effort is expected to yield important
demonstration effects for the IDB and its member countries, as they seek to strengthen
the development effectiveness of their actions and the measurement of resullts.

Poverty in Belize is chiefly rooted in economic factors such as unemployment, low
productivity and low earnings. Other contributing factors are education levels, size of
household, high dependency ratios and femal e-headed households.

Despite improvements inBelize' s social and economic indicators, there till are
segments of the population living in poverty and extreme poverty. Rural poverty is
widespread in the southern part of the country, particularly in the Toledo district.
Pockets of poverty and extreme poverty abound in the south side of Belize City.

Children, young people, the elderly, the disabled, femal e-headed househol ds and
indigenous groups are particularly vulnerable. The incidence of poverty among Maya
populations is twice the national average. Poverty also affectsthe Garifuna and Creole
peoples.

In preparing this program, the IDB solidified its partnership with other donor agencies
active in Belize, including the United Nations Development Programme and the United
Kingdom'’s Department for International Developmert. In light of Belize's commitment
to reducing poverty, the United Kingdom has provided substantial debt relief through
the Commonwealth Debt Initiative, freeing up resources to finance projects and
initiatives under the 2003-2008 NPESAP.
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Inter-American Development Bank PRESS RELEASE
Banco Interamericano de Desarrollo comunicano DE PRENSA
IDB Home > News > Press Releases Espafiol | Erancais | Portugués

October 29, 2003

IDB APPROVES $20 MILLION TO SUPPORT CULTURAL ACTIVITIES INFORMATION
INLOW-INCOME AREASOF METROPOLITAN SAO PAULO

*

Program to promote social inclusion of disadvantaged children and youth into society cCultura

The Inter-American Development Bank today announced the approval of a $20
million loan to finance cultural and artistic activities to promote social inclusion
of at-risk children and youth living in nine districts of metropolitan S&o Paulo,
Brazil.

Professional educators will offer coursesin art, music, theater, sculpture, design,
woodwork and multimediain sites of both existing community-based
organizations that offer social servicesto children and youth and in nine new
cultural centers that will be built and operated in nine districts. The educators will
also offer literary workshops and cross-cutting curriculafor al artistic activitiesto

encourage reading. PRESS CONTACT

The program is based on studies showing that the artistic |earning experience

improves the overall academic performance of children and youth and has a Daniel Drosdoff
positive effect on social inclusion, family unity and citizenship. The project (202) 6232407

reflects the IDB strategy for Brazil of reducing social inequity.

The districts to be served by the project have atarget group of 200,000
disadvantaged children and youth now lacking opportunities to participate in
cultural activities. Beneficiaries will also include members of the low-income
communities who will have accession to art exhibits, concerts, theater, and other
presentations that will take place in the cultural centers.

The program, which will be carried out by the S&o Paulo State Secretariat of
Culture* will apply a methodology to promote a high degree of participation by
the community in the decision-making process of the project and amonitoring
and evaluation component that will assess the results of the activities.

The Japanese Special Fund, administered by the IDB, is supporting activities to
start up the project with a $450,000 grant.

The IDB loan isfor a 20-year term, with asix-year grace period, at avariable
interest rate based on LIBOR.

Local counterpart funds total $10 million.
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Inter-American Development Bank PRESS RELEASE
A , .
R "% Banco Interamericano de Desarrollo comuniCADO DE PRENSA
IDB Home > News > Press Releases Espafiol | Erancais | Portugués
November 26, 2003
IDB APPROVES $1 MILLION GRANT FOR STRATEGIC INFORMATION
ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT OF TRANSPORTATION CORRIDOR
IN BOLIVIA L )
Servicio Nacional de
Caminos

Japan Special Fund contributes $750,000 for study on impact of road

PRESS CONTACT
The Inter-American Development Bank today announced the approval of a $1 million
grant to Bolivia's Servicio Nacional de Caminos to develop aStrategic

Environmental Assessment of the area of influence of the Northern Corridor road W‘:h
system. (202) 623-1718

The Japan Specia Fund, which is administered by the IDB, is contributing $750,000 of
the grant. The remaining $250,000 will come from the IDB’s Fund for Special
Operations.

The study to be financed by this operation is a preliminary activity intended to evaluate
and prevent problems in projects to be considered in the future.

The Northern Corridor ispart of along-term project being contemplated by the
Bolivian gover nment to upgrade and complete the Victor Paz Estenssoro Highway
system, linking La Paz with two cities on the border with Brazil, Guayaramerin, on the
Marmoré River, and Cobija, on the Acre River.

If execution of this project were eventually decided, the roads would cover more than
1,300 kilometers and have a major economic impact on the departments of La Paz, Beni
and Pando, nearly 40 percent of the country’s territory. At present, stretches of the
Northern Corridor remain closed part the year during the rainy season. The upgraded
roads would be open year-round and have major socioeconomic impacts.

The main purpose of the Strategic Environmental Assessment isto develop the basis for
sustainable devel opment of one of the least accessible and most promising regionsin
Bolivia, the departments of Beni and Pando, which have potential for large scale
agriculture and managed forestry.

This potential can only be achieved with programs that will address issues such as land
tenure and property rights, economic inclusion of rural and indigenous populations,
preservation of ecologically sensitive areas, education programs, sustainable forestry,
institutional capacity-building in local communities, and the promotion of competitive
activities, among others.

The Strategic Environmental Assessment will develop in detail an adequate
management framework to address all the identified direct, indirect and potential
socioenvirometal impacts of the corridor and examine the sustainable devel opment
possibilities. Development of the assessment will involve al major stakeholdersin the
corridor, including the private sector and residents.
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Just the facts, please
How adatabase of social indicators changed the way public policies are

designed and debated in Ecuador

By Daniel Drosdoff, Quito, Ecuador
How many people live below the poverty line? Where do they live? What schools do their children go to?

The answers to these and other basic questions are the starting point for all effective social policies. But in
many Latin American countries, reliable answers are hard to come by. For years, a group of Ecuadorian
social scientists, mathematicians, statisticians and computer experts warned the political establishment that
the country’s social statistics were woefully inadequate. These experts argued that governments were
making decisions about poverty and economic and social policy without really knowing the facts.

In the mid-1990s, the IDB helped to finance a pilot project to produce the first comprehensive statistical
database of Ecuadorian socia indicators. Working within the government’s Social Development
Secretariat, ateam made up of many of the experts who had drawn attention to the problem used a
combination of original surveys and existing research from public agencies to assemble a statistical profile
of Ecuador that included 450 indicators. The effort was funded by two IDB grants, one for $500,000 in
1995, and a second four years later for $1 million from the IDB -administered Japan Special Fund.

Posted January 2003
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JSF Projects Approved by the Bank
(CY 1988-2003)

Approval
JSF Projects Country SBgtqlér Ar?;roli/ al Amount
(US$)

JAcquisition of Building Materials for Housing damaged by
Hurricane Gilbert and Ingtitutional Strengthening for Jamaica Other 12/14/198¢ 5,000,004
Rehabilitation Efforts

TOTAL (CY1988) 1 5,000,000
Coastal Conservation Preinvestment Project Barbados Other 7/12/1989 1,200,000
Municipal, Departmental and Regional projects data bank Colombia Mﬁﬁg’éta;g” 8/16/1989 1,000,000
M anagement and Conservation of the Bao River Basin Dominican Rep Infrastructure 11/15/198¢ 772,000]
Emergency Social Fund Program- Second Stage - Balivia Other 11/29/198¢ 3,860,000
gyeiogwrt]rallzatl on and Regionalization of the Public Hedlth Care Haiti Social 12/13/198¢ 21540,000
IAgriculture Roads Program-T G Haiti Infrastructure 12/20/198¢ 850,000
Prepqratl on of Architectura Drawing for the New Pasteur Uruguay Social 12/20/198¢ 2,200,000
Hospital

TOTAL (CY1989) 7 12,322,000
TC for the Financing of Basic Studies on the Environmental . .
Impact of the Guerreto-Oaxaca Forestry Development Project Mexico Environment 4/25/1990 450,000
Marine Cargo Terminal at Clifton Point, New Province Bahamas Infrastructure 10/17/199C 2,000,000
Program to Improve Conditionsfor the Development of Trading ) -
Company in Latin America Regional Productive 10/31/199C 1,583,000

TOTAL (CY1990) 3 4,033,000
Feasibility Study and Designs for Health Sector Rationalization .
Program, Stage 1 Barbados Socia 1/9/1991 1,750,000
Georgetown Water and Sewerage Master Plan Study Guyana Environment 2/13/1991 1,800,000
Feasibility Study for the Health Sector Reform Program T&T Socid 2/27/1991 2,200,000
Global Program of Portable Water and Sewerage Balivia Environment 5/1/1991 5,072,117
Social Emergency Fund Peru Socid 9/18/1991 4,000,000
Urban Rehabilitation Project Feasibility Study Guyana Infrastructure 10/9/1991 1,100,000
Feasibility and Final Design Studies for the Preparation of the . .
Urban Sanitation Program Costa Rica Environment 10/9/1991 4,870,000
Preparation of aLong-Term Solid Waste Management Plan, .
Feasibility Studies and Final Design Barbados Environment 11/13/1991 1,555,000

TOTAL (CY1991) 8 22,347,117,
Natural Resources Conservation Costa Rica Environment 2/19/1992 1,937,000
Road Rehabilitation and Improvement Program Guyana Infrastructure 3/18/1992 781,000
grngpgr:g on of the Port Antonio Sanitation Project : Feasibility Jamaca Environment 712911992 1,700,000

gns
Technical Cooperation for Agricultural Sector : Policies and . .
Preparation Nicaragua Productive 8/5/1992 2,800,000
Strengthening of Economic Unit for Ministry of Finance Bahamas Modernization 10/14/199z 351,375
of the State
TOTAL (CY1992) 5 7,569,375

Improvement of Revenue Collection Systems Bahamas Other 1/13/1993 1,500,000
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Approval
. Bank Bank
JSF Projects Country Sector Approval Amount
(US$)
%'gﬁ’?&gzﬂ antation and Resin Bxtraction Feasibility Sudy ) i Environment 2241993 1,940,000
Institutional Strengthening of Tax Administration Service Honduras Other 3/17/1993 1,150,000
Environmental Planning Program Ecuador Socid 5/12/1993 1,049,000
TC for the Organization of a Seminar on Environment Law and ) .
Policy in Latin America Regional Environment 5/12/1993 40,000
Over-The-Counter Securities Market Feasibility Study Mexico Mﬂig';ta;gn 7/27/1993 148,500,
Credit and Technical Cooperation for aCommunal Banks
Program to Benefit Rural \Women Microentreneurs (TC) Guatemaa Other 9/3/1993 150,000
Credit and Technical Cooperation for aCommuna Banks
Program to Benefit Rural Women Microentreneurs (Small Guatemaa Other 9/3/1993 500,000
Project)
Rehabilitation of Priority Project (Sanitation and Health Sector)  Peru Environment 10/6/1993 1,000,000
Institutional Devel opment of the Legidlature Peru Moofdt?]rg Iétagtgn 10/6/1993 2,700,000
Non-Traditiona Export Promotion Ecuador Other 10/13/199z 800,000
National Network of Public Sector Investment Project Banks Colombia Mﬁig';gg‘ 11/24/199z 1,100,000
Feasibility and Environmental Impact Studies for Export -
Corridors Project Paraguay Infrastructure 12/22/199z 989,000
TOTAL (CY1993) 13 13,066,500
Strengthening of Tax Administration Guatemala Mﬁﬁg’éﬂg‘ 3/30/1994 977,000
IAgricultural Diversification and Generation and Transfer of .
i ooy Paraguay Productive 5/18/1994 1,500,000
Ingtitutional Strengthening of the Ministry of Economic and Modernization
Finance Peru of the State 5/24/1994 2,000,000
Preparation of a Feasibility Study for the Forestry Conservation
land Management Project and Support for Pilot Agroforestry and  Nicaragua Environment 5/25/1994 745,000
Forest Protection Activities
L atin America Regional Conference on Issuesin Public and ’ Modernization
Economic Development : The Experience of East Asia Regional of the State 6/1/1994 149,500
Strengthening of the General Administration-  stage Uruguay Other 6/15/1994 1,100,000
Pecific Coast Sustainable Development Program Colombia Environment 7/14/1994 532,000
Credit and Technical Cooperation for Microentreneursin Belize,
to be executed by the National Development Foundation of BelizeBelize Other 7/18/1994 150,000
(TC)
Credit and Technical Cooperation for Microentreneursin Belize,
to be executed by the National Development Foundation of BelizeBelize Other 7/18/1994 500,000
(Small Project)
Investment, Credit and Technical Assistance Program for Small
IAgricultural Producers to be Executed by the Fundacion Integral Costa Rica Other 10/20/1994 105,000,

Campesia(TC)

Investment, Credit and Technical Assistance Program for Small
IAgricultural Producers to be Executed by the Fundacion Integral  Costa Rica Other 10/20/1994 500,000
Campesia(Small Project)
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Credit and Technical Assistance Program for Small Agricultural
Producers and Rural Microentrepreneusto beexecuted by the  Costa Rica Other 10/20/1994 125,000]
IAsociacion Costarricense para Organizaciones de Desarrollo (TC)
Credit and Technical Assistance Program for Small Agricultural
Producers and Rura Microentrepreneus to be executed by the .
|Asociacion Costarricense para Organizaciones de Desarrollo~~ CoStaRica Other 10/20/1994 500,000
(Small Project)
Institutional Strengthening of the National Tax Administration Modernization
(SUNAT) Peru of the State 11/9/1994 2,200,000
Eregggrlrl]ty Study for the Galapagos Environmental M anagement Ecuador Environment 11/11/1994 600,000
Feasibility Studies for Solid Waste Water Management Bahamas Environment 11/28/1994 600,000

TOTAL (CY1994) 16 12,283,504
IWayuu Irrigation and Economic Development Project Colombia Socid 1/11/1995 285,000
Harnessing Asia Pacific Relationship for Strengthening the Civil ) Modernization
Society in Latin America Regional of the State 3/14/1995 150,000
Credit and Technical Cooperation Program for Microentreneursin .
Panama (TC) Panama Productive 5/4/1995 130,000]
Credit and Technical Cooperation Program for Microentreneursin .
Panama (Small Project) Panama Productive 5/4/1995 250,000
Project Chile, Phase 2 Chile Infrastructure 5/18/1995 620,000
Technical Studiesfor the Northern Coastal Highway .
I mprovement Project Jamaica Infrastructure 5/26/1995 500,000
Technical Cooperation for Subsector Irrigation Program Peru Productive 6/1/1995 750,000
National Rural Transportation Infrastructure Program Peru Infrastructure 6/27/1995 650,000
Community Based Marine Conservation Program in Brazil Brazil Environment 6/29/1995 550,000
Y outh in Development Regional Other 7/12/1995 38,000
Studies for the Environment Program of the Guatemala .
Metropolitan AreaPAMG Guatemala Environment 8/24/1995 744,960
Technical Studiesfor Priority Trunk Road T&T Infrastructure 8/24/1995 680,000
Credit and Technica Assistance Program for Small
Microentrepreneurs to be executed by " El Instituto de Promocion Uruguay Productive 9/1/1995 100,000
Economico Socia de Uruguay" (TC)
Credit and Technical Assistance Program for Small
Microentrepreneurs to be executed by " El Instituto de Promocion Uruguay Productive 9/1/1995 500,000
Economico Socia de Uruguay" (Small Project)
Conference on "Policy Based Finance and Alternatives for Modernization
Financia Market Development : Application of Lessonsfrom  Regional of the State 9/28/1995 150,000
East -Asiato Latin America'
gaef&/:t& i?lna?:nw ronment Protection of the National Park of Brazil Environment 10/4/1995 1,700,000
Technical Studiesfor the Electricity Sector Hybrid Program Guyana Infrastructure 11/6/1995 750,000
Technica Studiesfor the Preparation of aProgram for the
Economic and Socia Improvement of Depressed Western Bolivia Bolivia Social 12/19/199¢ 200,000
Mining Area
Family Island Infrastructure Bahamas Infrastructure 12/26/199= 600,000
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TOTAL (CY1995) 19 9,347,960
Environmental Institutional Strengthening Peru Environment 1/17/1996 1,800,000
I(gsl\t/l|t|L)m onal Strengthening of the Multisector Investment Bank El Salvador Other 1/19/199 340,000
El Valle de Anton Geothermal Field in Panama Panama Infrastructure 2/7/1996 1,400,000
Development Program for Bahia de Asuncion Paraguay Infrastructure 2/23/1996 725,000
Y outh from IDB member countries : Venezuela, in particular Regional Other 2/28/1996 58,337
Inter-American Institute for Social Development training program h :
[for opinion makersin Latin America and Caribbean Regiondl Socid 4/10/19% 1,500,000
Technica Studies for First year Road & Bridge Jamaica Infrastructure 5/8/1996 750,000
Devel opment of Economic and Trade Policiesfor Uruguay Modernization
MERCOSUR Negotiations Uruguay of the State 521/1906 749,000
Establishment of a Network of Wildlife Sanctuaries Brazil Environment 5/30/1996 480,000
gg S?Sg Agronomists in Sustainable Agriculture of the Humid Regional Social 6/12/1996 1,000,000
Conference on Development Thinking and Practice Regional Other 7/16/1996 400,000
Rimac River Watershed Management Program Peru Environment 8/1/1996 740,000
Preparation of the Alternative Development Colombia Socid 8/5/1996 350,000
Bridge Rehabilitation and Replacement Program Guyana Infrastructure 8/28/1996 750,000
Forum on Modernization of the State and Strengthening of Civil . Modernization
Society Regional of the State 10/4/1996 150,000,
Feasibility Study on Interoceanic Corridors Regional Infrastructure 10/17/199¢ 650,000
gﬁg{;‘;‘ of Berthing Fecilities (Bridgetown Port Expansion Barbados Infrastructure 10/23/199€ 750,000
Decontamination of Critical Areas (ES-0074) : Design and .
feasibility studies El Salvador Social 11/6/1996 749,698
Studies on Waste Water Treatment Plantsfor Pereira Colombia Environment 12/4/1996 750,000
Solid Waste Management Project Belize Environment 12/20/199¢ 566, 720]
TOTAL (CY1996) 20 14,658,755
&ﬁggiﬁg&gﬁm RioGrandede TarcolesWatershed - pica Environment 71711997 748,770
Water Supply to the Metropolitan Zone of the Valley of Mexico Mexico Environment 8/1/1997 282,000
;&ﬁ?&‘éﬁi’ on of Solid Waste Management ServiceinSan -,y o Environment 12/5/1997 500,000
LosVilos -LaSerena Toll Road- Chile Infrastructure 12/16/1997 123,200]
TOTAL (CY1997) 4 1,653,970
Tibitoc Water Treatment Facility Colombia Environment 1/14/1998 123,000
Miravalles 3 Geothermal Power Plant Costa Rica Infrastructure 1/14/1998 175,000
System of Inventory and Follow-up of Public Investment Projects Dominican Rep Infrastructure 3/9/1998 750,000
Regional Biodiversity Strategy for the Tropical Andes Regional Environment 3/9/1998 740,000

Urban Infrastructure Program in Stateswith Tourism Potentiadl~ Venezuela Infrastructure 4/22/1998 750,000
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WgsteNater treatment program for nine citiesin the State of Mexico Environment 42711998 746,641
Chihuahua
Tegucigal pa Comprehensive Municipal Modernization Program  Honduras Infrastructure 5/1/1998 742,500]
;an Pedro de Sula Comprehensive Municipal Modernization Honduras Infrastructure 5/1/1998 500,500
ogram
Water and Sanitation Program in Margina Rural Areas Mexico Environment 5/8/1998 136,000]
Secondary Education Program T&T Socid 5/8/1998 750,000
Rosario-Victoria Bridge Argentina Infrastructure 5/11/1998 200,609
Program of Consolidation of Water and Sanitation Reform Dominican Rep Environment 5/13/1998 675,000
L ake Gatun Water Plant Project Panama Environment 6/3/1998 300,000
JAir Transport Sector Reform Guyana Infrastructure 6/10/1998 300,000
Support Program for Civic Coexistence Colombia Mﬂﬁg'éta;gn 6/18/1998 700,000
Rodonorte Toll Road (Lot 5) Brazil Infrastructure 6/22/1998 100,000
Symposium on Financial and Business Cooperation between Latin )
Americaand J Regional Other 6/23/1998 740,000
Productive Infrastructure Development and Tenure Regul arization .
in Rural Trinidad T&T Productive 6/29/1998 510,000
Design of the Safety and the Natural Resources Components of
the Program to Reactivate the Productive Agrofood Sector of Guatemaa Productive 6/29/1998 100,000
Guatemala
g/lalo?:rnlzatlon and Reform for Primary Health Care: Province of Argentina Social 6/29/1998 199,260
oo "0 Stpport System for Fighway Inning a1 gering Infrastructure 71911998 700,000
Gl S Based Decision Support System for Transportation Planning -
and | nfrastructure Management Bolivia Infrastructure 7/9/1998 720,000
Gl S Based Decision Support System for Transportation Planning -, .
and Infrastructure Management Chile Infrastructure 7/9/1998 725,000
Rimichaca Riobamba Toll Road Project Ecuador Infrastructure 7/10/1998 100,000
Childcare Program for Children under Five Y ears Old through In- .
Home Nurseries \WawaWasi- Peru Social 7/14/1998 600,000
Sustai nable Devel opment Program of the Darian Panama Environment 7/29/1998 750,000
Bridge Rehabilitation Project Request for Additional Funding ~ Guyana Infrastructure 7/31/1998 45,000
Socio-environmenta pilot program in an area of extreme poverty Colombia Socid 9/1/1998 350,000
Formulation of the National Environmental Strategy for Panama Panama Environment 9/14/1998 430,000
M odernization of the StateOwned Telecommunications Utility ~— Suriname Infrastructure 9/17/1998 700,000
Caribbean Community Regiona M;dtirgléta;gn 9/23/1998 975,000
Strategic Initiatives for Health Sector Reform Nicaragua Socid 10/13/199¢ 481,400
Environmental Conservation in Tocantins Brazil Environment 10/14/199¢ 750,000
Eastern Development Program Guatemaa Socid 10/14/199¢ 1,000,000
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| Japanese Language Program Regiona Other 10/16/199¢€ 44,500,
Support for Health Reform Suriname Socid 11/4/1998 750,000
Support for Preparation of the Community Development Fund ~ Suriname Socid 12/10/199¢ 708,000
| ngrument Development for Hedlth System Reform in Panama Panama Socid 12/18/199¢ 456,136
Castello-Raposo Toll Road Project Brazil Infrastructure 12/21/199¢ 65,849
Proposal on Maternal and Child Health Care for Indigenous . !
Population in Mexico Mexico Social 12/22/199¢ 554,300

TOTAL (CY1998) 39 20,143,695
Social Indicators Integrated System (SI1SE) Ecuador Socid 1/20/1999 1,000,000
Studies in Support of Educationa Reform in Nicaragua Nicaragua Socid 1/21/1 998 230,000
Social Infrastructure and Capacity Building Projects Dominican Rep Socid 2/5/1999 749,500
Preparation of the Terms of Reference for the Azfural Geothermal .
Feasibility Study Colombia Infrastructure 2/12/1999 14,560
Street Children Awareness Campaign Regional Socid 5/11/1999 77,000
Disaster Mitigation in Central America Regional Socia 6/9/1999 1,110,000
Feasibility Study for the Prediction and Amelioration of
Socioeconomic Impacts of El Nino Southern Oscillation (ENSO) Regional Environment 7/14/1999 998,000
inL.A. and Caribbean
Development of Financial Sector Restructuring Strategy and Modernization
Instruments Ecuador of the State 8/1/1999 575,000
Financial Sector Adustment Program Peru Mﬁﬁgléa;gn 8/2/1999 534,100
Comprehensive EA Review towards Improved Environmental ) .
Management Capacity (1) Regional Environment 8/13/1999 400,000
Comprehensive EA Review towards Improved Environmental . .
M anggement Capacity (2) P Regional Environment 8/13/1999 140,000
Education Reform Phase 2 Guatemala Social 8/30/1999 500,000
Support for Development of Renewable Energy Marketsin Brazil Brazil Infrastructure 9/1/1999 898,950
Emergency attention to boy</girls and adolescents affected by . .
hurricane Mitch in the city of Managua Nicaragua Socid 9/16/1999 550,000
Water Supply and Sanitation of Cuenca Ecuador Environment 9/23/1999 750,000
Energia Norte Power Project Brazil Infrastructure 9/29/1999 285,000
Evaluation and Design of the Mahaica-Rosignol Road Guyana Infrastructure 10/12/199¢ 525,300
Secondary Education Improvement and Expansion Brazil Socid 10/18/199¢ 750,000
Primary Education Support Project : Project Preparation and . .
Master Plan Development Jamaica Social 10/25/199¢ 750,000
Dona Francisca Hydroel ectric Power Plant Project Brazil Infrastructure 11/11/199¢ 273,513
Support to Secondary Educdtion (1) Dominican Rep Socia 11/30/199¢ 423,800
Regional Tourism Program Preparation for the Mundo Maya h :
Organization(OMM) Regional Socid 12/1/1999 791,600

TOTAL (CY1999) 22 12,326,323
| Japanese L anguage Program Regional Social 2/3/2000 39,690
Consolidation of the Ingtitutional and Regulatory Framework for Peru Infrastructure 2/92/2000 750,000

Sustainable Energy-Efficiency Services for the Industrial Sector




Xii
Appendix |1

JSF Projects Approved by the Bank

(CY 1988-2003)

Approval
] Bank Bank
JSF Projects Country Amount
Sector Approval

LaChorrera Power Plant, Panama Panama Infrastructure 3/2/2000 340,075
ma;tl ((_)‘,E ;)f Municipal Infrastructure and Reform Program for Panama Infrastructure 3/30/2000 432,500
Sustainable Use of Tropical Forestin Acre Brazil Environment 5/17/2000 750,000
Program for the Reduction of Family Violence Peru Socid 5/17/2000 400,000
Preparation of Investment Project in Basic Education in Suriname Suriname Socia 5/24/2000 150,000
GIS Strengthening to Support Regional Transportation Studies
and Highway Planning and Privatization Peru Infrastructure 5/26/2000 750,000
Education Innovationsin the IndependenciaDistrict Peru Socid 6/19/2000 504,144
Procedures for Atraumatic Resrative Treatment (PRAT) Regional Socia 6/28/2000 870,200
Education and Know-how in Panama Panama Infrastructure 7/20/2000 190,000
Design of Social Protection Program Colombia Socid 7/20/2000 545,410
Integrated Water Resources Planning and Management in Paraiba Brazil Environment 7/21/2000 745,000
Local Government Training Program Honduras Socid 7/26/2000 750,000
Sewerage Master Plan for Quetzaltenango Guatemaa Environment 7/31/2000 595,000
Solid Waste Management and Disposal in the Coffee Belt Region Colombia Environment 8/2/2000 740,000
of Colombia
Tools for AIDS Prevention and Disease Management/Trestment  Jamaica Socia 8/18/2000 338,325
EDE Sur and EDE Norte Project Renabi Infrastructure 10/2/2000 450,000
%;gr;qaglde Development Strategy of the Panama Canal Panama Environment 11/1/2000 1,000,000
National Land Use Planning Strategy Honduras Environment 11/13/200C 652,000
Santiago -Vaparaisn-Vinadd Mar Toll Road Project Chile Infrastructure 12/19/200C 554,590

TOTAL (CY2000) 21 11,546,934
Capital Expenditures for Rural Electricity Distribution Guatemaa Infrastructure 1/3/2001 750,000
rn?cauullc?l Sﬁ/ﬁs stance for the Launch of the Seguro Materno- Peru Social 12412001 429,000
Rural Roads Rehabilitation and Maintenance Pilot Program Ecuador Infrastructure 1/31/2001 750,000

) . . Modernization

Implementation of National Public Investment System Peru of the State 3/2/2001 750,000
I ntegrated Management of the Patos Lagoon Estuary Brazil Environment 3/9/2001 750,000
Environmental Strategy Nicaragua Environment 3/14/2001 650,000
Sustainable Urban Transportation System in Parana Brazil Infrastructure 3/28/2001 750,000
gg]%rg?l ng Technica Education in Upper Primary and Secondary Honduras Social 5/11/2001 448,400
Support to the Infrastructure Fund in Argentina Argentina Other 6/1/2001 750,000
Sustainable Cultivation and Harvesting of the Sempre-Vivas . .
Flower Speciesin Brazil Brazil Productive 6/19/2001 149,000,
Program to Support the modernization of Secondary Education .
and Teacher Training Uruguay Social 7/6/2001 597,000
Support for an Indigenous Bilingual and Intercultura Basic Colombia Social 212012001 739,505

Education Pedagogy Bachelor's Program
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Spatid Information System for Nationd Infrastructure
Management and Planing Uruguay Infrastructure 7/27/2001 750,000
Reform of Drug Treatment Center Colombia Socia 8/1/2001 322,500
E;s;] gr; of a Sustainable Development program for the Lower Rio El Salvador Environment 8/20/2001 208,650
Model program for the Prevention, Detection and Treatment of
Domestic Violence in the Hedlth and Early Childhood Education Colombia Socia 8/27/2001 748,000]
Sectors
Sustainable Development Strategy for Bocas del Toro Province  Panama Environment 9/10/2001 450,000
Support to Housing Policy for Low-Income Population Dominican Rep Socid 9/28/2001 746,820]
gﬁg Resource Management Program Phase || - Feasibility ¢ Environment 10/30/2001 550,000
Support for the |mplementation and Monitoring of the .
Reconstruction Program El Salvador Socid 11/21/2001 750,000
Consultation and Project Design, Socioemvironmental ) .
Component of the Mesoamerican Biological Corridor Regional Environment 12/3/2001 745,000
Strengthening the Trinational System of the Program for . .
Sustai nable Development in the Upper Rio Lempa River Regiond Ervironment 12/3/2001 700,000
Comprehensve.PrOJect for at Risk Infants and Adolescents of the Uruguay Social 12/17/2001 500,000
Uruguayan Family

TOTAL (CY2001) 23 14,073,875
Support to the Preparation of Y outh Development Program Jamaica Socid 2/19/2002 403,000
Establishment of a Caribbean Regional Technica Assistance ) Modernization
Center Regional of the State 2/28/2002 650,000

) Lo . ; Modernization
Urban Crime and Impunity in Colombia Colombia of the State 3/4/2002 350,400
San Pedro Sula Water and Sewerage Project Honduras Environment 3/15/2002 148,830
Institutional Development for Information Technology Dominican Rep Modernization 5/8/2002 200,000
of the State
Mainstreaming Domestic and Social Violence Prevention into ) .
Primary Education Policy Regional Socid 6/7/2002 750,000
Science and Technology Program : Program Preparation Peru Infrastructure 6/12/2002 620,000
E’:rogram to Combat Desertification in Brazil and Neighboring Regional Environment 6/12/2002 1,000,000
ountries

:\;l‘;nogggta?%' dicators Program for Disaster Risk Regional Environment 6/12/2002 795,000
H;nmgg%?qta?g)l ndicators Program for Disaster Risk Regiona Environment 6/12/2002 505,000
Developing a National Sustainable Market for Clean Rural
Energy Services El Savador Infrastructure 6/24/2002 750,000
Girl's Education in Latin America Regional Socia 7/15/2002 600,000
Corporate Restructuring of ISSSTE Mexico Socia 8/12/2002 750,000
Design of Low-Income Housing Program Nicaragua Socid 9/20/2002 327,550
Design and Formulation of the Country Environmental Strategy . .
for Sustainable Development in ES El Salvador Environment 10/24/200z 348,700
Design and Implementation of the Strategic Plan for the National Mexico Productive 11/15/2002 600,000

Program for Microenterprise Financing
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Appendix |1

JSF Projects Approved by the Bank

(CY 1988-2003)

Approval
] Bank Bank
JSF Projects Country Sector Approva A([r}g)nt

Suppqrt for the preparation of the Integrated program for Citizens Guatemala Modernization 11/19/2002 380,000
Security of the State

TOTAL (CY2002) 17 9,178,480
Support for Coordinat ion between the Special Indigenous Judicial . .
System and the National Judicial System Colombia Socia 1/22/2003 650,000
Devel oping a Coordinated Water Action Plan for Latin America ) .
and thepCagri bbean Regional Environment 2/13/2003 600,000
M odernization of Expenditure and Taxation and Investment Fund . Modernization
ffor Growth and Competitiveness CostaRica of the State 4/18/2003 325,000
National Strategy for Environmental Management Costa Rica Environment 4/21/2003 470,000
Slum Upgrading Program Costa Rica Socia 5/29/2003 500,000
%gﬂgré rf}or the Program of Culture and Citizenship for Social Brazil Social 6/5/2003 450,080
Support for the Preparation of Mundo Maya Program Regional Infrastructure 6/6/2003 750,000
Sustainable Development of the Huetar Atlantica Region Costa Rica Environment 7/7/2003 600,000
IAnalysis of the Social Strategy Mexico Socid 8/7/2003 377,000
IAnalisys of Housing market and Initial Development of Financing )
Mechanisms for Low-income Households Colombia Infrastructure 10/1/2003 390,574
Integrity Indexes for Public Institutions Colombia Moofdt?]rglétagtgn 11/7/2003 600,000
Strategic Environmental Assessment Evaluation of the Northern o -
Corridor of Boliviafrom LaPaz to Guayaramerin Bolivia Infrastructure 11/26/200¢ 750,000
Support for the Preparation of the Citizens Security Program Nicaragua Mﬁigléta;gn 12/12/200z 300,000

TOTAL (CY2003) 13 6,762,654

TOTAL 231 176,314,138
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JPO Projects Approved by the Bank

(CY 2000-2003)

XV

Approval
. Bank Bank
JPO Projects Country s Approva Amount
(USy)

Social Indicatiors for the Monitoring of Poverty Alleviation Mexico Social 5/22/2001 569,000
National System for Monitoring Poverty Indicators (SINASIP)  Honduras Social 7/5/2001 150,000
Support of a Social Reform Program Colombia Social 8/8/2001 227,575
Program to Elaborate a Poverty Reduction Strategy for the - .
Dominican Republic Dominican Rep Social 9/4/2001 610,400
Preparation of the Poverty Reduction Strategy Guatemala Social 9/12/2001 750,000
Reorganization of Health Services Networksin Colombia Colombia Social 10/2/2001 209,000

TOTAL (CY2001) 6 2,515,975
Devel opment of Organization of Older Adults Regional Social 1/28/2002 750,000
Support the Population of Active and Disabled Lobster Diversin .
the Honduran Moskitia Honduras Social 7/12/2002 350,000
Management of Environmental Risk in Low Income Human ) .
Resettlement in Central America's Urban Areas Regional Environment 8/19/2002 210,000
Support for the Preparation of aVulnerable Neighborhood ) .
Intervention Program Chile Social 10/7/2002 745,000
Women in Rural Area Mexico Social 11/20/2002 749,000
Design of a Subsidy Program for the Water and Sanitation Sectar Colombia Environment 12/18/2002 191,000
Strengthening Civil Society Organization Networks through ] Modernization
I nformation Technology Chile of the State 12/20/2002 500,000

TOTAL (CY2002) 7 3,495,000
Support to the Design and Implementation of the Sector Program .
of Fiscal and Social Reform Peru Social 3/20/2003 748,000
Instruments and Methodologies for Targeting Children,
|Adolescents and Women who Depends on the Streets and Garbage Honduras Social 7/10/2003 625,000
Dumpsfor their Survival
Support the Upgrading and Completion of the Poverty Elimination _ . .
Strategy and Action Plan in Belize Belize Social 8/8/2003 300,000
IAccelerating Rural Energy Coverage in Panama Panama Infrastructure 9/30/2003 400,000
Regional Ethno-Tourism Project Targeting Areas of Extreme ’
Poverty in Central America Regional Infrastructure 12/16/2003 750,000

TOTAL (CY2003) 5 2,823,000

TOTAL 18 8,833,975
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Appendix IV
JCF Projects Approved by the Bank

(CY 1995-2003)

Living Conditions in Guatemala

Approval
f Bank Bank
JCF Projects Country Seap Approval A(rSg)nt
Support in the Preparation of aNationa GIS System Project Bahamas Environment 10/28/1996 40,000
TOTAL (CY1996) 1 40,000
Technical Cooperation for the Donor Coordination Unit Bolivia Other 4/14/1997 134,760
The Conference of the Challenge for the Industry of technological .
change and innovation Regional Other 4/18/1997 6,000
The Conference of the Development of Securities Marketsin ) Modernization
Emerging Markets: Obstacles and Reconditions for Success Regional of the State 9/3011997 6,000
Development of National Geographical Information System Bahamas Other 11/5/1997 992,000
TOTAL (CY1997) 4 1,138,760
Ground Water Recharge Project for the Ecological Conservation . .
Zonein Mexico City Mexico Environment 2/11/1998 960,000
IAdolescent Reproductive Health Education Bahamas Socid 7/22/1998 1,240,800
Hiring of Consulting Servicesto Support the MIF Program Regiona Other 11/11/1998 90,000
Business Plan for the City of Knowledge in Panama Panama Infrastructure 11/20/1998 750,000
TOTAL (CY1998) 4 3,040,800
Support for Developing a Sustainable Public Transit Systemina
Pilot City, Cuenca Ecuador Infrastructure 1/6/1999 750,000
Training Reform Transition Haiti Socid 5/5/1999 750,000
Sustainable Municipa Forestry Management Guatemaa Environment 9/7/1999 149,000
Decentralization and Effective Citizen Participation : Lessons . Modernization
L earned Regional of the State 11/8/1999 605,000
Design of Maternal and Child Health Insurancein Peru Peru Social 12/23/1999 150,000
TOTAL (CY1999) 5 2,404,000
Environmental Management and Water Quaity Improvementsin " -
Codl Mining Operationsin Santa Catarina Brazil Environment 1/19/2000 750,000
Feasibility Study for a Portable and Wastewater Treatment . A
Facility on Caye Caulker Belize Environment 1/19/2000 195,250
Feasibility Studies of the Azufral Geothermal Field -Phase 1- Colombia Infrastructure 3/1/2000 1,500,000
Feasibility Studies of an Expansion of the Electricity
Transmission Network Ecuador Infrastructure 10/3/2000 750,000
Pre-feasibility Study for Hydrological Works on the Puyang- .
Tumbes River Regiona Infrastructure 10/4/2000 687,000
Promotion of Stock Exchange Transaction and Capital Market in . Modernization
Central America, Panama & Dominican Republic (MIF) Regiona of the State 10/20/2000 120,000
SM E Devel opment through Entrepreneurship Enhancement Regiona Productive 10/27/2000 355,000
TOTAL (CY2000) 7 4,357,250
Program for the Improvement of Surveys and the Measurement of Guatemala Social 2/6/2001 640,000
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JCF Projects Approved by the Bank

(CY 1995-2003)

XVii

Approval

JCF Projects Country Se?:tngr Ap?r?rn(l)i/al A([r}g)nt
:_\?ltﬁg]rﬁ:forgglj CTLIIE[’ :;ida?:fg ;ﬂl dsl\‘lljztrlggg?;? ase o Support Uruguay Infrastructure 10/4/2001 350,000
Rf;’(?u?g;”g aSustainable Urben Transportation Systemfor Infrastructure 10/17/2001 1,000,000
;I :; cf;gr otfhg rli@/el opmentof the Artisan Fishery Sector of the Vth Chile Productive 10/31/2001 200,000
gﬁf :;gj;ft Jf";,t]héxi‘;‘;‘fgﬁg af:g’;”e‘;“"i ty Program and Uruguay Social 12/19/2001 748,200)
TOTAL (CY2001) 5 2,938,200
it el Sl B RONATEIS g gemer a0
%;C)ﬁgg ég;r:aergrgarati on of Information and Communication Guyana Infrastructure 6/3/2002 400,000
ggg;g'c?gfa"rfgdsj'fg i‘f‘:";tzog;;is"” Control Sudy for the Chile Environment 942002 1,200,000
Municipal Benchmarking System for Centra America Regional Infrastructure 9/13/2002 640,000
e e e T mica wnowe Wi 40000
TOTAL (CY2002) 5 3,390,000
Urban Transportation Planning in La Paz Boalivia Infrastructure 1/13/2003 750,000
?Xg%‘fm;ﬂ%gg}ﬂg%ﬂa Management for Groundwater o, iay Environment 21242003 750,000
S?k;marneg m ?_d:gjlzz ation of the Drainage Master Plan for the Boalivia Environment 12/9/2003 750,000
TOTAL (CY2003) 3 2,250,000
TOTAL 19,559,010

34
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Appendix V
JSF Projects Approved by Sectors
(CY 1988-2003)

(Thousands of US Dallars)

Country | 1988 [ 1989 [ 1990 | 1991 | 1992 | 1993 | 1994 | 1995 | 1996 | 1997 | 1998 | 1999 [ 2000 | 2001 | 2002 | 2003 | Total | %
Group A 450 149 2,250 480 282 4,203 2,207| 1,495 2,968 2,099 827] 17,410 9.4
Argentina 1,100 750] 1,850 1.0
Brazil 2,250 480 919 2,207| 1,495 1,649 450 9,441 5.1
Mexico 450 149 2821 1,437 569 2,099 377 5363 2.9
Venezuela 750 750 0.4
Group B 1,000 4,000] 6,740 4,732 2,303 3,640 123 2,494 549 4,244 3,426 2,404 2,389] 38,057 20.9
Chile 620 123} 724 555 1,245 3,264 1.9
Colombia 1,000 3,040] 532 285 1,100 1,173 15 1,285 2,247 541 1,641 12,859 6.9
Peru 4,000] 3,700 4,200 1,400 2,540 60q 534 2,404 1,179 620  748] 21,9285 11.8
Group C 5,0000 3,300 2,000 10,375 3,98 1,500 2,930 2,76( 3,649 749 5,529  750[ 2,451 2,297 403 2,295] 49,979 27.0
Bahamas 2,000 351 1,500] 600j 600 5,054 2.7
Barbados 1,100 3,305 750) 5159 2.§
Costa Rica 4,870] 1,937 1,230 749 17§ 1,895] 10,854 5.9
Jamaica 5,000f 1,700 500 750 750) 338 403 9,441 5.1
Panama 380 1,400 1,936 1,963 450 400 6,529 3.9
Suriname 2,158 150 2,308 1.2
T&T 2,200, 680 1,264 4,140 2.2
Uruguay 2,200 1,1000 604 749 1,847 6,494 3.5
Group D 8,022 7972 3,581 4,638 4,472 1,694 3,132 5007 5,414 5,303 2,447 6,454 2,504 1,975] 58,111 31.4
Belize 650) 567] 300 1,511 0.9
Bolivia 3,860 5,072 200 720 7501 10,602 5.7
Dom.Rep 772 1425 1,173  450] 1,357 204 5371 2.9
Ecuador 1,849 600 10q 2,325 1,300 6,174 3.3
El Salvador 1,090 1,049 1,099 3239 1.7
Guatemala 650) 977 745 1,100 500 595( 1,500 380 6,447 3.5
Guyana 2,900 781 750 750 344 525 6,051 3.3
Haiti 3,39 3390 1.8
Honduras 1,150 5000 1,243 1,402 598 499 625 6,017 3.2
Nicaragua 2,800 745 481 780 6500 324 300 6,084 3.3
Paraguay 989 1,500 725 3,214 1.7
Regional 1,583 40 150 334 3,758 2,500 3,517 910f 1,445 5,260 2,100] 21,601 11.7
Total 5,000 12,329 4,033 22,347 7,569 13,067| 12,284 9,348 14,659 1,654( 20,144 12,326( 11,547| 16,590 12,674 9,586] 185,15(/100.0
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Appendix VI
JCF Projects Approved by Country
(CY 1995-2003)

(Unit : US$ thousands)

Country 1995 1996 1997 1998 1999 2000 2001 2002 | 2003 Total %
Group A . 960 750 - 750 . 2,460 10.6
Argentina
Brazil 750 750 1500 6.5
Mexico 960 96Q 4.1
Venezuela
Group B - 150 1,500 1,200 1,200 - 4,050 17.9
Chile 200j 1,200 1,400 6.0
Colombia 1,500 1500 6.5
Peru 150 1,000 1,150 5.0
GroupC 40 992 1,991 : 1,098 400 - 4521 199
Bahamas 40 992 1,243 2,273 9.9
Barbados
CostaRica
Jamaica 400 404 1.7
Panama 750 750 3.2
Suriname
T&T
Uruguay 1,098 1,094 4.7
Group D 135 1,649 945 640) 400 2,250 6,019 26.0
Belize 195 199 0.8
Bolivia 135 1,500 1,63 7.1
Dom.Rep
Ecuador 75(Q 75(Q 1500 6.5
El Salvador
Guatemala 149 640 789 34
Guyana 400 400 1.7
Haiti 750 75 3.2
Honduras
Nicaragua
Paraguay 750 754 3.2
Regional 569 530 633} 714 992 1,385 106 901 276 6,109 26.4
Total 569 570 1,760j 3,665 2,791 4,580 3,044 3,651 2,526 23,156 100.9
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Appendix VI
JSF Country and Sector Distribution

Country -Group Digtribution of JSF Projectswith Bank Approval

(Accumulated amount, US$ millions)
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Appendix VIII
JCF Country and Sector Distribution

Country -Group Digribution of JCF Projectswith Bank Approval
(Accumulated amount, US$ millions)
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Appendix IX
JSF Auditor’s Report and Financial Statements

Ell ErNST & YOUNG  Erredl & Young Lie & Phene: (703 747-1000

HAH4 Wesipark Drnee VLTI CONTE
R Leam, WA X200

REPFORT OF INDEFENDENT AUDITORS

To the Inter-American Development Bank,
Administrator of the Japan Special Fund
Establizshed by the Goverminent of Japan:

We have audited the accompanying balance sheet of the Japan Special Fund Established by the Government of
Japan (the Fund), administered by the Inter-American Development Bank (the Bank), as of December 31, 2003
and 2002, and the related statements of changes in fund balanee and cash flows for the years then ended. These
financial statemnents are the responsibility of the Bank s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion
on these financial statements based an our audits.

We conducted our sudits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States. Those
standards require that we plan and perfiorm the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free of material misstatement. An audit ineludes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporiing
the amounts and disclosures in the financial ststements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made by the Bank's management. as well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

Chur audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements taken as a whole.
The Supplementary Balance Sheet by Program, Supplementary Statement of Changes in Fund Balance by
Program, and the Supplementary Statement of Cash Flows by Program are presented for purposes of additional
analysis and are not a required part of the financial statements. Such information has been subjected 1o the
auditing procedures applied in our audits of the financial statements and. in cur opinion, are fairly stated in all
material respects in relation to the foancial statements taken 25 a whole,

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Fund as of December 31, 2003 and 2002, and the changes in its fund balance and ils cash flows
for the years then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States.

Baret ¥ MLL-‘P

Washington. D.C.
Miarch 24, 2004

THO4-(:430T86-MLL. A wlernbser Practice of Erpst & Yourng Glabasl
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JSF Auditor’s Report and Financial Statements

JAPAN SPECIAL FUND
ESTABLISHED BY THE GOVERNMENT OF JAPAN
{ Administered by the Inter-American Development Bank)

SHEET
{Expressed in thousands of Japanese yen )
December 31,
2003 2002
ASSETS
Cash 159914 241,657
Investments 10,504, 180 13,040,473
Total assets 10,664,004 13282130
—_— E——————
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE
Due to Administrator 43,722 147,582
Undisbursed grams 3.524.930 4294, 109
Fund balance T.H5 442 8,540,439
Taotal liabilities and fund balance 10,664,004 13,282,130
 FE—— ]
N FUND BALANCE
(Expressed in thousands of Japamese ven)
Years ended December 31,
2003 2002
ADDITIONS
Contribution from Government of Japan 192,150 474,010
Income on cash and investments 164,014 253,150
Total additiens 356,164 727,160
DEDUCTIONS
Girants, net 1,192,560 1,716,124
Direct and indirect expenses 19,429 12,491
Administrative commissions 3363 8,005
Total deductions 1,215,352 1,736,910
Met decrease before translation adjustments (B30, 188) (1.009.750)
Translation adjustments (E85,809) (851,751}
Net decrease after translation adjustments (1.744,907) (1.E61.501)
Fund balance, beginning of year 8.840.439 10,701,940
Fund balance, end of year 7095442 8.840,439

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statemenis.

HH-HIOTES- ML 3
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JSF Auditor’s Report and Financial Statements

JAPAN SPECIAL FUND
ESTABLISHED BY THE GOVERNMENT OF JAPAN

{Administered by the Inter-American Development Bank )

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

({Expressed in thousands of Jupanese yen)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Change in fund balance, before translation sdjustments
Difference between amounts accrued and amounts
paid or collected for:
Met unrealized gains on investments
Undisbursed grants
Drue to Administrator

Met cash used in operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Net decrease in mvestments

Met cash provided by investing activities
Effect of exchange rate fluctuations on cash

Met decrease in cash

Cash, beginning of year
Cash, end of year

Supplemental disclosure of noncash activities
Decrease resulting from exhange rate fluctuations:
Investments
Undisbursed grants
Due to Administrator

Years ended December 31,

2003 2002
(859,188) (1,009, 750)
(116.561) (234.827)
(326.126) (283.321)
(95.485) 73,645
(1.397.360) (1,454,253)
1,328,303 179,143
1,328,303 179,143
(12.686) (16,211
(81.743) (1.291,321)
241.657 1,532.978
159,914 241.657
(1.324.553) (1,267.584)
(443,054} (418.407)
(8.376) (13,637)

The accompanying nares are an infegral part of these financiol sfatements.

O TN,
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XXV

JAPAN SPECIAL FUND
ESTABLISHED BY THE GOVERNMENT OF JAPAN
{ Administered by the Iier-American Development Bank

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 2003 and 2002

NOTE A - NATURE OF THE FUND

On April 26, 1988, the Government of Japan (the Government) and the Inter-American Development Bank
(the Bank) signed an agreement (the Agreement) to establish the Japan Special Fund (the Fund). which is
funded by the Government and administered by the Bank.

The purpose of the Fund is to provide grants to help developing member countries of the Bank accelerate the
process of economic and social development.

Resources contributed to the Fund by the Government are as follows (in thousands of Japanese yven (¥ or
1Py

Year Amount
prior to 2002 24.634.075
2002 474,010
2003 192,150

In accordance with a procedure estoblished in August 1994, the cost of each new operation financed by the
Fund is approved and disbursed in United States dollars (USD). Accordingly, up until Movember 2002, the
Fund converted resources held in JPY into the amount approved in LISD at the time of approval. In
compliance with an agreement reached with the Government during 2002, effective Movember 15, 2002, all
resources held by the Fund in JPY were converied into USD to fund future operations, thus eliminating the
need to make partial currency conversions.

In 1998, the Bank approved the establishment of the Japan Program. The objectives of the Japan Program are
to create opportunities tor providing expertise, knowledge, and best practices of Asia to the countries of Latin
America and the Caribbean and vice-versa, and to the Bank in the formulation of economic and social
development strategies. priorities, and palicies. The lapan Program also promotes parinerships and supports
comparative studies between entities interested and involved in economic and social development in Latin
America, the Caribbean and those in Japan and the rest of Asia, such as public agencies, universities, non-
governmental organizations, and research institules.

DLl Ch BN R I 4
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The Japan Program serves as an umbrella for activities funded in accordance with the above-mentioned
ebjectives. In order 1o Onance the Japan Program, a special window of the Fund was established in 1999, for
which the ameunt of USD 29.7 million was transferred from the Japan Special Main Account to cover
approximately USD 2.0 million per yvear in non-reimbursable grants.

In February 2001, the Government approved the establishment of the Japan Poverty Reduction Program (JPO
Program ). On April 5, 2001, the Fund converted the JPY equivalent of USD 30,000,000 and deposited this
amount in a new account denominated in US dollars, to establish the JPO Program under the framework of
the Fund. The PO Program was established in order to increase the focus of the Fund towards the financing
of poverty reduction initiatives to support the Bank's initiatives in this respeet. It is expeeted that it would
provide funding for grants approved over the period from 2001 to 2003,

The specific objectives of the JPO Program are to: (a) support well-targeted poverty reduction and social
development activities that would have a direct impact on the population affected by poverty and those
vulnerable groups that are socially and/or economically disadvantaged, (b) stimulate the capacity of the poor
to help themselves; (¢} stimulate widespread stakeholder participation st the community level, and {d) provide
a systematic impact on operations and programs in the Bank's borrowing member countries towards
sustainable poverty reduction.

The accompanying Appendix [, [l and 111 present separately the operations of the Japan Program and the JPO
Program from the remaining operations of the Fund, which are reflected in the Japan Special Main Account.

Pursuant to the Agreement, as amended m 1991, the Bank is authorized to charge an administrative
commission of 1.75% of funds contributed by the Government during each year. During 2003 and 2002,
administrative commissions were charged to the Fund in the amount of ¥3,363.000 and ¥8.295,000,
respectively.

NOTE B - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements of the Fund are prepared in conformity with accounting principles peneral by accepted
i the United States. The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reporied amount of assets
and liabilities, the diselosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and the
reported amounts of additions to and deductions from the fund balance during the reporting period. Actual
resulta could differ from these estimates,

Investments

Investments are carried and reported at fair value. Realized and unrealized paing and losses are included in
income on cash and investments in the Statement of Changes in Fund Balance.

Effective in 2003, the net change in investments is presented as a component of cash flows from investing
activities in the Statement of Cash Flows. Prior to 2003, this amount was included in the Statement of Cash
Flows as cash equivalents. Prior year amounts have been reclassified to reflect this change.

D0 307 26-MA01. 5




Appendix IX
JSF Auditor’s Report and Financial Statements

XXVii

Grantx

Technical eooperation grants are recorded as deductions from the fund balance when approved. Cancellations
of the undisbursed portion of grants approved are recorded as an offset to granits in the period in which they
BCELE.

Transtation of currencies

The United States dollar is the functional currency of the Fund. However, the financial siatements are
cxpressed in Japanese yen, which is the reporting currency of the Fund, Assets and liabilities that are
denominated in United States dollars are translated at market rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of the
financial statements. Additions to and deductions from the fund balance are translated at market rates of
exchange prevailing during cach month, The adjustments resulting from the translation of assets and liabilities
into Japanese yen are shown in the Statement of Changes in Fund Balance as translation adjustments.

Fair values of financial fnstruments

The following methods and assumptions were used in estimating the fair value of financial instruments:

Cash: The carrying amount reported in the Balance Sheet for cash approximates fair values,

Investmemes: Fair values for investments are based on quoted market prices, where available, I
quoted market prices are not available, fair values are based on quoted market prices of comparable
mstruments,

NOTE C - CASH

Cash includes overnight bank deposits in the amount of ¥156,703,000, as of December 31, 2003 (2007 -
Y238, 000,000,

NOTE D - INVESTMENTS

The Bank invests the Fumd's resources in the same type of securities in which it invests ite own funds under its
investment authority, The Fund’s resources are invested in high quality securities through an investment pool
managed by the Bank. Investiments may include government, agency, bank and corporate obligations, time deposits
and assed- and mortgage-backed securities with credit quality equivalent to ratings ranging from A+ to AAA.

The Bank limits the Fund's activities of investing in securities 1o a list of authorized dealers and counterparties.
Strict credit limits have been established for cach counterparty and the Bank, as the Administrator of the Fund,
does nol anticipate non-performancs by any of its counterparties.

MNet unrealized pains on investments, held at December 31, 2003, in the amownt of ¥116.560.000, (2002-
¥234.827,000) were included in income on cash and investments. The average return on investments and overnight
bank deposits, including realized and unrealized pains and losses, during 2003 and 2002 was 1.33% and 1.77%,
respectively.

- IO TRE-MCT. 6
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NOTE E - UNDISBURSED GRANTS

The following is a summary of changes in undisbursed grants for the years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002 {in
thousands of JPY):

2003 2002

Undisbursed grantsas of January 1, ..o cvvivivnnnnnivaanns 4,294,109 4.995.837
AEAONS EPEIONEL. . . oo i o e e g st o pimb 1,433,597 1,933,240
CanaslIE.. . oo T e e e R {241,037} {217.116)
s i L i e e i 1,192,560 1.716,124
DHERAUTSOMINENNEE. o+ oo v in i bae kB S h b B B RS LR (1.518,684) (1,999,445
Tremslation sdjustments. .. ...cocveenavnirassiniissrans (443,055} {418.407)
Undishuraed grants as of December 30, ... ... ... . o 0.0 3.524.930 4.194.109

NOTE F - TRANSLATION ADJUSTMENTS

Asg indicated in Note B, adjustmenis resulting from the translation of assets and Liabilities inlo Japanese ven are
shown as translation adjustments in the Staternent of Changes in Fund Balance. Such adjustments consist of the
following for the years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002 (in thousands of JPY )

2003 2002
Comulative adjustments, beginning of year. . ............ (249 963) 6, TRE
Translation adjustmemts, . ......... i i SR (BE5.H09) (851.751)
Cumulative adjustments, end of year, . ........ ... coon. (1.135,772) (249.963)

NOTE G — THE JAPAN PROGHRAM AND THE JPO PROGHAM

All of the operations of the Japan Program and the JPO Program are condocted in United States dollars. The
following is a summary of the operations of these programs for the years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002, as
applicable {in thousands}:

CHH-HANTEE-MCL. T
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Japan Program;

Available resources as of January 1.............
Income on cash and investments.............

Translation adjustments

Available resources as of December 31, ...,

JPO Program:

Available resoarces as of January 1,..........

Income on cash and investmenis.. ..

5y R —
Translation adjustments. ... ....cococeenmees
Available resources as of December 31, ........

NOTE H - CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK

2003 2002
LSD JPY Equiv. USD JPY Equiv.
24,653 2055607 26,399 3479357
3T 44,171 562 0368
(2,130} (241,020) (2,308) (292.798)
= {307,301} = (301.320)
22,902 2451457 24,653 2955607

2003 2002
LSD JPY Equiv. LS JPY Equiv.
25,5019 3,058,594 28,244 3,722,653
IER 45,204 SHO T1.220
(2,996) (345,724) (3.304) [405,788)
= {306,512 - (320491}
22,901 2451562 25,509 3,058,504

Credit risk represents the accounting loss that would be recognized at the reporting date if counterparties fail
completely to perform as contracted, At December 31, 2003 and 2002, the Fund had cash, ovemight bank
deposits and time deposits in a Japanese financial instinstion with operations in Japan and in the United States
of ¥159.914,000 and ¥241.657,000, respectively. The Bank. as the Administrator of the Fund, does not
anticipate nonperformance by any of its counterparties. The amount of credit risk shown, therefore, does nat

represent expected losses,

(0= 04 30T R ML
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EERNST&YGUNG = Ermst & Young Le ® Phone: (703 7470000

484 Wisspark Drive WWYLERY, COHTY
Mclean, VA 22102

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

To the Inter-American Development Bank,
Administrator of the Japanese Consultants Fund
Established by the Government of Japan:

We have audited the accompanying balance sheet of the Japanese Consultants Fund Established by
the Government of Japan (the Fund). administered by the Inter-American Development Bank (the
Bank}, as of December 31, 2003 and 2002, and the related statements of changes in fund balance and
cash flows for the years then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Bank’s
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our
audits.

We conducted our audits 1n accordance with asditing standards generally accepted i the United
States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatemment.  An audit includes
examining, on a lest basis, evidence supporting the amounis and disclosures in the financial
statements.  An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates
made: by the Bank’s munagement, as well as evaluating the overall financial statcment presentation,
We beligve that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred Lo above present fairly, in all materal respects, the
financial position of the Fund as of December 31, 2003 and 2002, and the changes in its fund balance
and its cash flows for the years then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally

accepted in the United States.
M 4 MLL?

Washington, [2.C.
March 24, 2004

A Mermlser Practioe of Erml & Young Gl
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JAPANESE CONSULTANTS FUND
ESTABLISHED BY THE GOVERNMENT OF JAPAN
(Administered by the Inter-American Development Bank)

BALANCE SHEET
{Expeessed in thawsands of Japanese yen)
Diecember 31,
2003 2002
ASSETS
Cash 31.940 3095
Investments 1,550,260 1,620,529
Total asses 1,582,200 1,929 544
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE
Due to Administrator 2632 4926
Undhishursed grants 725372 1.082 436
Fund balance £54,195 842,182
Totul liabilitics and fund balance 1,582,200 1,929,544

(Expressed in thousamds of Japanese yen)

Years ended December 31,

2003 2002
ADDITIONS
Contribution from Japanese Governmen! 211,030 208,907
Income on cash and investments 23,583 32,006
Total additions 234,613 241,913
DEMICTIONS
Grants, net 106,508 453,775
Administralive COMITESSI0NS 4.221 4,198
Accountant foes 1 0190 1,081
Total deductions 1119 450,054
Net increase idecrease) before translation adjustmenis 122.494 (217,141)
Translation adjustmenty (110.4581) (76,426)
MNet increase (decrease) after transkation adjustments 12013 (293 567)
Fund balance, beginning of vear 542,182 1,135,749
Fund balance, end of year 854,195 F42,182

The accompanying wates are an integral part of these financial satements
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JAPANESE CONSULTANTS FUND
ESTABLISHED BY THE GOVERNMENT OF JAPAN
{Administered by the Inter-American Development Bank)

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
{Expressed in thousands of Japanese yen)

Years ended December 31,
2003 2002
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Change in fund balance, before translation adjusiments 122,494 (217,141}
Difference between amounts accrued and amounts
paid or collected for:
Met unrealized gains on investments (16.752) {29,710
Undisbursed grants (259.849) 219 904
Drue o Administrator (1.553) B29
Met cash used in operating activities (155.660) (26,118)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:

Met increase in imvestments (113,394) (116,433)
Net cash used in investing activities (113.396) (116,433)
Effect of exchange rate fluctuations on cash (B.019) (21,318)
Med decrease in cash (277.075) (163,865}
Cash, beginning of year 309,015 472,884
Cash, end of year 31,940 300015

—_—— e ——

Supplemental disclosure of noncash activities
Decrease resulting from exhange rate fluctuations:

Investments (200,417)
Undisbursed granis (%7.215)
Due 1o Administrator (7400

The accompanying mines are an integral part of these financial statements.,

(148,658)
(93.041)
(309
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JAPANESE CONSULTANTS FUND
ESTABLISHED BY THE GOVERNMENT OF JAPAN
(Administered by the Inter-American Development Bank)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2003 and 2002

NOTE A - NATURE OF THE FUND

On February 15, 1995, the Government of Japan (the Government) and the Inter-American
Development Bank (the Bank) signed an agreement (the Apreement) to establish the Japanese
Consultants Fund (the Fund), which is funded by the Government and adminisiered by the Bank.

The purpose of the Fund is to finance: (i) the fees and related travel expenses of individual Japanese
consullants performing medium-term assignments (up lo one year, with a possibility of further
exlension) in support of the Bank’s activities; and (i) the professional fees and related travel expenses
for short-term consulting services performed at Bank headquanters or in the Bank's berrowing
member countries by Japanese nationals, acting as individual consultants, or on behalf of specialized
institutions and consuliing firms {all such consulting services referred 1o collectively as the
Consultancy Services).

Resources contributed 1o the Fund by the Govemnment are as follows in thousands of Japanese yen (¥ or
JPY):

Year Amount
Prior 1o 2002 2,846,480

20602 200,907

2003 211030

Since 1995, the Fund approves and disburses all the operations financed by the Fund in United States
dollars. Accordingly, before 2003 the Fund used to convenl resources held in Japanese yen into the
amount approved in United States dollars at the time of approval. During late 2002, the Government
approved the conversion of all resources held by the Fund in Japanese yen into United States dollars
to fund future operations, thus eliminating the need 1o make partial currency conversions. The
currency conversion of all Jupancse yen resources into United States dollars was carried out in April
of 2003,




Appendix X
JCF Auditors Report and Financia Statements

XXXVil

2

Pursuant to the Agreement, the Bank is authorized to charge an administrative commission of 2% of
funds contributed by the Government during each year. During 2003, administrative commissions
were charged to the Fund in the amount of ¥4, 220,600 (2002 - ¥4,198,140).

NOTE B - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements of the Fund are prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States. The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally
accepted accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect
the reported amount of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and liahilities at the
date of the financial statements, and the reported amounts of additions to and deductions from the
fund balance during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from these estimates.

Investments
Investments are camricd and reporied at fair valwe, Realized and unrealized gains and losses are
included in income on cash and investments in the Statement of Changes in Fund Balance.

Effective in 2003, the nct change in investments is presented as a component of cash flows from investing
sctivities in the Sualement of Cash Flows. Prior to 2003, this amount was included in the Statemeni of
Cash Flows as cash eguivalents. Prior vear amounts have been reclassified to reflect this change.

Grants

Technical cooperation grants are recorded as deductions from the fund balance when approved.
Cancellations of the undisbursed portion of grants approved are recorded as an offset 1o grants in the
perind in which they occur.

Transtation of eurrencies

The United States dollar is the funciional currency of the Fund. Howewer, the financial siaiements are
expressed in Japancse yen, which is the reporting currency of the Fund. Assets and liabilities that are
denominated in United States dollars are translated at market rates of exchange prevailing at the dates
of the financial staterments. Additions 1o and deductions from the fund balance are translated at
market rates of exchanpge prevailing during each momth. The adjusiments resulting from the
translation of assets and liabilitics into Japancse yen are shown in the Statement of Changes in Fund

Balance as translation adjustments.
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Fair values af financial instruments
The following methods and assumplions were used in estimating the fair value of financial
imstrumenis:

Cash: The carrying amount reporied in the Balance Sheet for cash approximates fair value,

Investments: Fair valucs for investments are based on quoted markel prices, where available.
If quoted market prices are not available, fair values are based on guoted market prices of

comparable instruments.

NOTE C - CASH
Cash includes overnight bank deposits in the amount of ¥30,870,000, as of December 31, 2003
(2002 - ¥122.241,000).

NOTE D - INVESTMENTS

The Bank invests the Fund's resources in the same type of securities in which it invests its own funds
under its investment authority. The Fund's resources are invested in high ﬁua]ity securities through
an investment pool managed by the Bank. Investments may include government, agency, bank and
corporate obligations, time deposits and assel- and mortgage-backed securities with credit qualilty
equivalent to ratings ranging from A+ o AAA.

The Bank limits the Fund's activities of investing 1o a list of authorized dealers and counterparties.
Strict credit limits have been established for each counterpanty and the Bank, as Administrator of the
Fund, does not anticipate non-performance by any of its counterparties.

Met enrealized gains on investments, held at December 31, 2003, in the amount of ¥16,752,000
(2002 - ¥20.710,000) were included in income on cash and investments. The average relurn on
investments and overnight bank deposits. including realized and unrealized gains and losses,
during 263 and 2002 was 1.31% and 1.66%, respectively.
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NOTE E - UNDISEURSED GRANTS
The following is a summary of changes in undisbursed grants for the years ended December 31, 2003
and 2002 {in thousands of JFY):

2003 2002

Undisbursed grants as of Januwary 1, ... .. .00 oo oL 1082 436 055,573
Gransapproved. ... e e 202237 455314
S (185,429) (1.539)
KRR, T o a7 it VW e B 106,508 453,775
Translation adjustmiEnts. . . ..« oe et ceranenrnnas (97,215) (93,041)
TIRSTrEaInS i ;b wiioae s o o o G R T S i {366,657) {233.871)
Undisbursed grants as of December 31, . ... ... iine. 725,372 1,082,436

NOTE F - TRANSLATION ADJUSTMENTS

As indicated in Note B, adjustments resulting from the translation of assets and liabilities into
Japanese yen are shown as translation adjustments in the Statement of Changes in Fund Balance.
Such adjustments comsist of the following for the years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002
{in thousands of JPY):

2003 20602
Cumulative adjustments, beginning of year. . ... ... 41,530 117,956
Translation adjustments. . ... oL (110481} {76.426)
Cumulative adjustments, end of year, .. ........... (68,951 41,530

NOTE G - CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK

Credit risk represents the accounting loss that would be recognized at the reporing date if
counterparties foil completely to perform as contracted. At December 31, 2003 and 2002, the Fund
had cash and overnight bank deposits in a Japanese financial institution with operations in Japan and
in the United States of ¥31 940,538 and ¥309,014.540, respectively. The Bank, as the Administrator
of the Fund, does not anticipate nonperformance by any of its counterparties. The amount of credit
risk shown, therefore, does not represent expected losses.




